
“4 THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL 

Park and Planning Commission 

COMMISSION 

MEETING 

July 19, 2023 

10:00 a.m. — 12:00 noon 

Prince George’s 

Parks and Recreation Administration 

Auditorium 

6600 Kenilworth Avenue 

Riverdale, Maryland 20737



This page intentionally left blank.



ITEM 1 
MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, July 19, 2023 

10:00 am to 12:00 noon 
Hybrid — Online & Prince George’s Parks and Recreation 

Administration Building Auditorium, Riverdale 

ACTION 
Motion [Second 

1. Approval of Commission Agenda (10:00 a.m.) (*) Pagel 

2. Approval of Commission Minutes (70:05 a.m.) 

a) Open Session — June 21, 2023 (*) Page 3 

3. General Announcements (10:05 a.m.) 

a) Bereaved Parents’ Month 

b) Upcoming Hispanic Heritage Month (September 15-October 15) 

4. Committee Minutes/Board Reports (For Information Only) (10:10 a.m.) 

a) Employees Retirement Association Board of Trustees Regular Meeting — June 6, 2023 Page 9 

5. Action and Presentation Items (70:15 a.m.) 

a) Recommendation for Benefit Changes for Calendar Year 2024 (Spencer/McDonald) (*) LD 

b) Recommendation for Deferred Compensation (457 plan) & the Federal 

SECURE Act 2.0 (Spencer/McDonald) (*) Page 13 

c) Budget Transfer Request (Knaupe) (*) D 

d) Mapping Segregation Project (Stern) Page 15 

see also: Interactive map 

7. Officers’ Reports (11:40 a.m.) 

Executive Director’s Report 

a) Late Evaluation Report, June 2023 (For Information Only) Page 59 

Secretary Treasurer 

No report scheduled 

General Counsel 

b) Litigation Report (For Information Only) Page 61 

(*) Vote (LD) Late Delivery (H) Handout (D) Discussion Only 



This page intentionally left blank.



\A IM Item 2 

LHE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 
| | 6611 Kenilworth Avenue + Riverdale, Maryland 20737 

Commission Meeting 

Open Session Minutes 
June 21, 2023 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission met in hybrid, in-person/videoconference, with 

the Chair initiating the meeting at the Wheaton Headquarters Auditorium in Wheaton, Maryland. The meeting 

was broadcast by the Montgomery Planning Department. 

PRESENT 

Prince George’s County Commissioners Montgomery County Commissioners 

Peter A. Shapiro, Chair Artie Harris, Vice Chair 
Dorothy Bailey James Hedrick 

William Doerner Josh Linden 

Manuel Geraldo Mitra Pedoeem 

NOT PRESENT 

A. Shuanise Washington Shawn Bartley 

Chair Shapiro called the meeting to order at 9:39 a.m. He welcomed Vice-Chair Harris and Commissioner 
Linden to the Commission. 

ITEM 1 APPROVAL OF COMMISSION AGENDA 

ACTION: See item 2 

ITEM 2 APPROVAL OF COMMISSION MINUTES 

Open Session — May 17, 2023 

Motion by Commissioner Geraldo to adopt the 6/21/23 Agenda 

and 5/17/23 Open Session Minutes 

Seconded by Commissioner Bailey 

6 approved the 5/17/23 minutes 

Harris, Linden Abstained 

8 approved the 6/21/23 agenda 

ITEM 3 GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

a) National Caribbean American Heritage Month 

b) Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Queer + (LGBTQ+) Pride Month 

ITEM 4 COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS (For Information Only) 

a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes, May 2, 2023 

©



ITEM 5 

June 21, 2023 

ACTION/PRESENTATION ITEMS 

a) 

b) 

Resolution 23-13 Adoption of the FY24 Commissioner Operating and Capital Budgets 
(Kroll) 

Corporate Budget Director Kroll presented the final budget resolution for M-NCPPC’s FY24 

Budget. He noted differences between the proposed and actual budgets appearing in the 

packet, which were adopted by the County Councils. 

ACTION: 

Motion by Commissioner Geraldo to approve Resolution 23-13 
Seconded by Commissioner Doerner 

8 voted in favor 

Resolution 22-44 Approval of the FY24 Employer Contribution for Retiree Group Health 
Insurance (115 Trust) (Cohen) 

Secretary-Treasurer Cohen reviewed the resolution for Commissioners, which is to identify 

the employer contribution to the trust fund which covers providing retiree health benefits. 
The recommended contribution amount, calculated by the Trust actuary is $8.556M for 

FY24. 

ACTION: 

Motion by Commissioner Geraldo to approve Resolution 22-44. 
Seconded by Commissioner Hedrick 

8 voted in favor 

Amendments to Practice 2-26/Procedures 96-01 (Controlled Substances and Alcohol-Free 

Workplace Policy) (Harvin/Beckham) 

Corporate Policy and Management Operations Director Harvin summarized the changes to 

the policy regarding the use of alcohol in M-NCPPC facilities and by M-NCPPC employees 

along with the impact of the recent legalization of cannabis in the state of Maryland. 

The policy codifies that the use/serving of alcohol at M-NCPPC events/facilities must be 

authorized in writing by the appropriate Department Head or Planning Board Chair. 

Cannabis will be treated as any other prescription drug. Employees must still be able to 

perform their job. Recreational, off-duty use is permitted for employees who do not hold 

safety-sensitive positions, but the use may not impair job performance. Under certain 

circumstances, testing for cannabis may be required, but employees will not be subject to 

discipline solely due to a positive test, as current testing methods cannot determine 

impairment, but only the presence of the drug. As science changes to detect impairment, the 

policy office will amend the policy. CPMO Director Harvin noted these allowances are not 

available to safety-sensitive positions, including CDL-licensed drivers, due to federal 

regulations. Those employees will not be permitted to use cannabis. 

CPMO Director Harvin said recreational use of cannabis in Maryland represents uncharted 

territory for these policies. The Corporate Policy office will continue to stay abreast of the 

situation. 

Commissioner Pedoeem asked to clarify the permission aspect of M-NCPPC employees to 

drink at a park function where alcohol is being served. CPMO Director Harvin said 

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session () 2



June 21, 2023 

d) 

individual employees do not need to seek permission if they are not on duty. The written 

permission aspect of the policy applies to the event, not individual employees. As a practical 
matter, if the Commission is holding a function on Commission property, a Department Head 

or Planning Board Chair should state up front whether employees may consume alcohol. If 

an employee is representing the M-NCPPC, at an off-site event, it is the responsibility of the 

employee to drink responsibly. 

General Counsel Borden clarified that the Parks Departments permit outside vendors who 

serve alcohol, and public funds are not used to purchase alcohol. The Chair or the 

Department Head must authorize it in writing and specify whether employees may consume 

alcohol at the event. She added if an employee is not attending as an employee/representative 

of the agency, they may consume alcohol simply as a member of the public. 

Commissioner Doerner asked to review a scenario in which things may get out of hand. It’s 
not clear if a planning board chair or department head authorizes an event and they 

themselves drink, who holds them accountable? He summarized the issue with the former 

Montgomery County Planning Board and noted these changes do not address the issue. 

General Counsel Borden agreed executive oversight is challenging. The policy amendments 

on alcohol at M-NCPPC facilities/events are meant to provide a paper trail for a specific 

event. The executive oversight issue wasn’t addressed in the past at all. As more changes are 

warranted, the policy may continue to be amended. Commissioner Doerner suggested if the 

executive is hosting the event and wishes to drink, a similar level executive must authorize it. 

Chair Shapiro suggested this issue be addressed in future updates. 

Commissioner Linden asked to clarify the definition of on-duty versus off-duty, is it a place- 

based definition, work hours definition, or something else. CPMO Director Harvin said if an 

employee is being paid, they are on duty. If the employee is off-duty and attending in their 

personal time, they are not on duty. Commissioners Linden and Pedoeem asked for language 
to be added to reflect that clarification. 

ACTION: 

Motion by Commissioner Geraldo to approve the policy amendments. 
Seconded by Commissioner Hedrick 

8 voted in favor 

Updated on Covid-19 Vaccination Mandate Rollback Plan (Chiang-Smith) 

Executive Director Chiang-Smith said on May 11, the Federal Government ended the 

national COVID-19 emergency. She requested approval of the recommendation to have the 

M-NCPPC repeal and rescind the vaccination mandate for all employees, new-hires and 

volunteers. She noted a FAQ sheet that had been included in the packet, which will be 

distributed to help address questions staff, applicants and volunteers may have. 

She noted that a request was made to examine whether the time frame to keep vaccination 
records could be amended to be briefer than the National Archives-required 30 years. Legal 

and Human Resources staff are looking into amending the period and will report back to the 

Commission at a later date. 

She thanked the Risk and Safety Office for managing the process, including a 24/7 tracking 

line for employees to report infections, provide information, and allow the agency to track the 

spread of the virus among agency staff, visitors and facilities. They’d been tracking these 

numbers since 2020 and have done a tremendous job in keeping the agency’s staff and its 

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session (*) 3



June 21, 2023 

patrons safe. 

Chair Shapiro thanked staff for guiding the agency through the issue. 

Pride Month: LGBTQ+ Heritage Initiative (Stern/Ballo) 

Acting Director Stern introduced Historic Preservation Supervisor Rebeccah Ballo, who 

provided information and resources on the Montgomery County Planning Department’s 
commitment to highlighting the County’s commitment to LGBTQ+ history in Montgomery 

County. 

Ms. Ballo shared a presentation on a joint project between the Montgomery Planning 

Department and the State of Maryland to further their commitment to Diversity, Equity and 
Inclusion impacting the LGBTQ+ community. This effort produced a study of LGBTQ+ 

heritage in Montgomery County, the state of Maryland and at the national level; and how that 

history has been underrepresented in the overall historical narrative. 

Topics included: 

e LGBTQ+ America: National Park Service Theme Study 

LGBTQ+ Maryland Statewide Context 

Susan Silber House, retired LGBTQ activist and lawyer 

Bruce Williams House, first openly LGBTQ-elected official in Maryland 

Robert Coggin House, founder of the LGBTQ rights movement in Montgomery 

County 

e Prince George’s County LGBTQ+ Heritage Sites 

e Recognition and Partnerships 

e Planting the Rainbow Flag publications, including links to a database which contains 

information on over 400 sites of LGBTQ+ heritage in Maryland. 

Chair Shapiro praised Ms. Ballo and Director Stern for the multijurisdictional effort. 

Congratulations to all who participated. Executive Director Chiang-Smith said she attended 

the M-NCPPCs booth at the recent Capital Pride festival for several hours and said it was a 

huge success with great representation from the agency, a very positive vibe and we are 
definitely looking forward to participating again. 

Georgia Avenue Walking Tour — Pedestrian Safety (Stern) 

Acting Director Stern briefed Commissioners on the May 31 visit of Maryland Governor Wes 

Moore, who attended a walking tour of Georgia Avenue through downtown Wheaton. The 

tour was organized by former M-NCPPC Commissioner Natali Fani-Gonzalez in conjunction 

with the Montgomery County Transportation Department and Montgomery County Planning 

Department. It illustrated the pedestrian safety conditions and economic development issues 

along Georgia Avenue in downtown Wheaton. Acting Director Stern shared photos of the 

tour and information on pedestrian accidents in the downtown Wheaton area to highlight the 

importance and need for pedestrian safety. Because Georgia Avenue, University Blvd and 

Viers Mill Road are state-owned roads, it is critical to work with the Maryland DOT and 

State Highway Administration to make the area safer for pedestrians. 

During the tour, Acting Director Stern shared details on the Pedestrian Master Plan that the 

Montgomery Planning Department developed, currently under review with the County 

Council. She said after the tour, Gov. Moore provided remarks to the press supporting the 
efforts to improve pedestrian safety. 

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session («) 4



It was a good opportunity to meet the Governor and bring his attention to the matter. Chair 

Shapiro thanked Acting Director Stern for representing the M-NCPPC so well. 

ITEM 5 OFFICERS’ REPORTS 

Executive Director’s Report 

a) Late Evaluation Report (May 2023) (For information only) 

b) 3 Quarter MFD Purchasing Report (For information only) 

Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 

No report scheduled. 

General Counsel’s Report 
c) Litigation Report (For information only) 

With no other business to discuss, Chair Shapiro adjourned the meeting at 10:37 a.m. 

Lr 
J ames . Adams, SenforFectnicalWriter 

pa ae 
ytive Director Asuntha Chiang-Smith fExec 

Commission Meeting Minutes — Open Session 5 

June 21, 2023



This page intentionally left blank.



Item 4 

Ww EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, June 6, 2023; 10:00 a.m. 

Kenilworth Office Building, Riverdale, MD 

(Virtual Meeting via Microsoft Teams) 

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (“Commission”) Employees’ Retirement System 

(“ERS”) Board of Trustees (“Board”) met virtually through Microsoft Teams with CHAIR SHAPIRO leading the 

call on Tuesday, June 6, 2023. The meeting was called to order at 10:00 am. by CHAIR SHAPIRO. 

Board Members Present 

Peter A. Shapiro, Board of Trustees Chair, Prince George’s County Commissioner 

Gavin Cohen, CPA, M-NCPPC Secretary-Treasurer, Ex-Officio 

Pamela F. Gogol, Montgomery County Public Member 

Caroline McCarthy, Montgomery County Open Trustee 

Sheila Morgan-Johnson, Prince George’s County Public Member 

Theodore J. Russell III, Prince George’s County Open Trustee 

Elaine A. Stookey, Bi-County Open Trustee 

Howard Brown, F.O.P Represented Trustee 

Lisa Blackwell-Brown, MCGEO Represented Trustee Arrived at 10:01 a.m. 

Asuntha Chiang-Smith, M-NCPPC Executive Director, Ex-Officio Arrived at 10:04 a.m. 

Board Members Absent 

Vacant, Montgomery County Commissioner 

ERS Staff Present 

Andrea L. Rose, Executive Director 

Jaclyn F. Harris, Deputy Executive Director 

Sheila Joynes, Accounting Manager 

Alicia C. Stanford, Administrative Specialist 

Presentations 

Cheiron - Patrick Nelson, FSA, CERA, EA, MAAA, Consulting Actuary 

Cheiron - Janet Cranna, FSA, FCA, EA, MAAA, Principal Consulting Actuary 

Wilshire Advisors, LLC — Bradley A. Baker, Managing Director and LouAnn Eisenhut, Assistant Vice President 

Other Attendees 

Ben Rupert —- M-NCPPC Office of General Counsel, Principal Counsel 

ITEM 1. APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 6, 2023, CONSENT AGENDA 

ACTION: MR. RUSSELL made a motion, seconded by MS. GOGOL to approve the Consent Agenda of 

June 6, 2023. The motion PASSED (8-0). Lisa Blackwell-Brown and Asuntha Chiang-Smith were 

absent for this vote. (Motion # 23-20). 

JUNE 6, 2023 MINUTES, AS APPROVED 

AT THE JULY 11, 2023 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING



ITEM 2. CHAIR’S ITEMS — No discussion or questions from the Trustees. 

Lisa Blackwell-Brown arrived at 10:01 a.m. 

ITEM 3. MISCELLANEOUS - No items to report. 

Asuntha Chiang-Smith arrived at 10:04 a.m. 

ITEM 4. CONSULTANT PRESENTATIONS 

ITEM 4.A. CHEIRON 

Patrick Nelson and Janet Cranna presented the Annual Economic Assumption Review dated June 6, 2023 which 

included the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation results and current economic assumptions. The report analyzed the 

impact of an investment return assumption decrease from 6.70% to 6.65% with projected results as of June 30, 2023. 

Beginning in 2013, the Board annually considers the appropriateness of the investment return assumption prior to 

each actuarial valuation. The Board has gradually reduced the investment return assumption from 7.5% in 2013 to 

6.70% effective June 30, 2022. 

The investment return assumption is the single most powerful assumption. Factors to consider in selecting the 

investment return assumption include industry trends, historical experience, expectations for the future, and the 

investment portfolio’s risk and target allocation profile. The Board reviewed these factors as part of Cheiron’s 

presentation. 

Data from Wilshire on projected asset returns was also included in Cheiron’s analysis. The expected return for a 30- 

year time horizon based on the portfolio’s target allocation is 8.15%. The probability of achieving a 6.70% investment 

return 1s 55.29% with an expected risk of 10.90%. According to the most recent data from NASRA, the average 

return assumption is 6.93% for public pension plans. Decreasing the investment return assumption to 6.65% as of 

June 30, 2023, increases unfunded actuarial liabilities by $7 million; the employer contribution by an estimated $1 

million; and decreases the funded ratio from 91.3% to 90.7%, assuming the experience is identical to the assumptions. 

The trustees discussed the current return assumption and whether the data presented supported a decrease in the 

assumption rate. Cheiron expressed a high level of comfort with the ERS either holding the current rate or reducing 

it by 5 basis points. 

Mr. Baker presented Wilshire Advisor’s analysis of the Actuarial Return Assumption & Liability Discount Rate 

which supported maintaining the investment return assumption at 6.70% based upon Wilshire’s forward-looking asset 

class return assumptions. 

Staffs recommendation was to maintain the 6.7% investment return assumption given the data provided by Wilshire 

Advisors and Cheiron. 

ACTION: MR. COHEN made a motion, seconded by MS. CHIANG-SMITH to keep the investment return 

assumption at 6.70% for the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation. The motion PASSED (10-0) (Motion 

# 23-21). 

JUNE 6, 2023 MINUTES, AS APPROVED 

AT THE JULY 11, 2023 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING



ITEM 4.B. Wilshire Advisors, LLC 

Mr. Baker provided a Quarterly Executive Summary for the quarter ending March 31, 2023. The Total Fund return 

was 2.6% (net of fees) for the quarter, underperforming the target policy index return of 4.3%. For the one, three, 

five, and ten-years ended March 31, 2023, the ERS return was -0.9%, 10.6%, 6.7%, and 6.9%, respectively; compared 

to the target policy return of -3.4%, 8.7%, 5.0% and 5.8%, respectively. The Total Fund value as of March 31, 2023 

was $1.1 billion. The U.S. equity market was up 7.3% for the first quarter but down -8.6% for the past 12 months. 

The best performing sectors were IT (+21.2%) and Communication (+19.8%). The worst performing market sectors 

were Financial (-5.2%) and Energy (-4.6%). 

ITEM 5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Ms. Rose presented the Executive Director’s Report dated May 26, 2023. Ms. Rose reminded the Board the next 

Board meeting on July 11, 2023 will include an education presentation on Opportunistic Fixed Income by Wilshire 

Advisors and investment manager presentations will be held for the Opportunistic Fixed Income manager search. 

Ms. Rose also informed the Board about preparations for the annual audit. A final meeting with the Audit Committee 

will be scheduled for the end of September to review the audit results and auditor’s opinion. During July and August, 

staff will prepare the Financial Statements, Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, and the Popular Annual 

Financial Report. 

The ERS will receive an employer contribution from the Commission on July 3, 2023, of $28.4 million. This is in 

line with the actuarial contribution recommendation from Cheiron. Staff will consult with Wilshire Advisors 

regarding the placement of the funds. 

The renewal of the ERS Fiduciary Liability Insurance policy is underway for FY2024. The current policy has a limit 

of liability of $7.5M with a $50k deductible and $44,260 premium. 

Ms. Rose informed the Board that on May 17, 2023, the Commission approved Resolution No. 23-08 adopting 

FY2024 wage adjustments for non-represented merit employees. The ERS typically follows the Commission for 

wage adjustments for ERS employees. Therefore, Ms. Rose recommended a 3.5% anniversary increase for FY2024 

for eligible ERS employees; a 0.5% lump sum payment for eligible ERS employees at top of grade; a 2.5% cost-of- 

living adjustment effective the first full pay period on or after September 1, 2023; and a 2.5% cost-of-living 

adjustment effective the first full pay period on or after January 1, 2024. 

ACTION: MR. RUSSELL made a motion, seconded by MS. CHIANG-SMITH to approve a 3.5% anniversary 

increase for FY2024 for eligible ERS employees; a 0.5% lump sum payment for eligible ERS 

employees at top of grade; a 2.5% cost-of-living adjustment effective the first full pay period on or 

after September 1, 2023; and a 2.5% cost-of-living adjustment effective the first full pay period on or 

after January 1, 2024. The motion PASSED (10-0) (Motion # 23-22). 

ITEM 6. COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS 

ITEM 6.A. Audit Committee 

Gavin Cohen provided a brief update on the Audit Committee meeting held on May 16, 2023. No further discussion 

was held by the Board. 

JUNE 6, 2023 MINUTES, AS APPROVED 

AT THE JULY 11, 2023 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING



ITEM 6.B. Investment Monitoring Group 

Sheila Morgan-Johnson gave an update on the Investment Monitoring Group meeting held on May 16, 2023. Ms. 

Morgan-Johnson informed the Board that Wilshire Advisors presented a preliminary short list of candidates for the 

Opportunistic Fixed Income manager search, and the IMG used the meeting as a working session to select two (2) 

finalists. After performing due diligence, the IMG recommended Golub Capital Partners and Audax Group as 

finalists for the Opportunistic Fixed Income manager search. 

ACTION: MR. COHEN made a motion, seconded by MS. MORGAN-JOHNSON to approve the 

recommendation for Golub Capital Partners and Audax Group as finalists for the Opportunistic Fixed 

Income Search. The motion PASSED (10-0) (Motion # 23-23). 

ITEM 7. CLOSED SESSION 

ACTION: At 11:15 a.m., MS. GOGOL made a motion, seconded by MS. CHIANG-SMITH to go into Closed 

Session under authority of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland Section 

3-305(b) (5) to consider matters directly concerning the actual investment of public funds under the 

authority of the Board. The motion PASSED (10-0) (Motion #23-24), 

During Closed Session, the following action was taken by the Board of Trustees: 

The Board considered matters related to the investment of public funds under authority of the Board and approved 

action recommended by Wilshire Advisors. Board of Trustees in Closed Session: Chair Shapiro, Gavin Cohen, Lisa 

Blackwell-Brown, Sheila Morgan-Johnson, Theodore Russell III, Elaine Stookey, Caroline McCarthy, Howard 

Brown, Asuntha Chiang-Smith, and Pamela Gogol. 

ACTION: MS. CHIANG-SMITH made a motion, seconded by MS. GOGOL to ratify the actions taken in Closed 

Session. The motion PASSED (10-0) (Motion # 23-26). 

The Board meeting of June 6, 2023, adjourned at 11:30 a.m. 

Respectfully, 

Abesa Cs Stanford Cncbis. &% Korn; 

Alicia C. Stanford Andrea L. Rose 

Administrative Specialist Executive Director 

JUNE 6, 2023 MINUTES, AS APPROVED 

AT THE JULY 11, 2023 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING



Item 5b 

MIN 
HE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

| 6611 Kenilworth Avenue «+ Riverdale, Maryland 20737 

a 

. 

July 12, 2023 

TO: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

VIA: Asuntha Chiang-Smith, Executive Director 

William Spencer, Acting Deputy Executive Director & Human Resources Director 

FROM: Jennifer McDonald, Benefits Manager 

Cynthia Henderson, Principal Benefits Specialist 

SUBJECT: | Deferred Compensation Plan — Secure Act 2.0 

On December 29, 2022, the Setting Every Community Up for Retirement Enhancement (SECURE) 2.0 

Act was signed into federal law. The timing and requirements of the new provisions vary - some are 
mandatory while others are optional. This memo will focus on the optional provisions that apply to the 

agency’s deferred compensation plan administered by MissionSquare, formerly, ICMA-RC. 

Requested Action 

e Approve the recommendations to adopt the following provisions: 

o Penalty-free withdrawals for domestic abuse victims. 

o Emergency Savings Withdrawals. 

o Emergency Savings Accounts for non-HCEs (highly compensated employees). 

Background Details 

= Penalty-free withdrawals for domestic abuse victims: 

o Distribution made within one year of domestic abuse by spouse or domestic partner. 

o Plan administrator may rely on participant certification. 

o Cap at $10,000 or 50% of account balance. 

o 10% penalty waived. 

o Repayment allowed within 3 years. 

= Emergency Savings Withdrawals: 

o One emergency distribution per year up to $1,000. 

o Requires replenishment before subsequent withdrawal. 

o 10% penalty waived. 

o Participant self-certifies need. 

©



« Emergency Savings Accounts for non-HCEs (linked to individual account plans): For the 2024 

plan year, an HCE is an employee who earns more than $150,000 in 2023. 

O 

O 

(e) 

O 

Up to $2,500 emergency savings account inside the deferred compensation plan. 

Contributions are made via a ROTH account (post-tax). 

Counts against annual contribution limits. 

Amounts may be withdrawn at any time, penalty free. 

No certification from participant required.



Item 5d 

"4 Montgomery Planning 

BRIEFING ON THE MAPPING SEGREGATION PROJECT 

one { \ a \ Branch ‘ North \ 2 ve = Z ‘ VP | \ Jasprer) \ 3 Ky 2, \ 
| ) \ Bethesda > 

lacy x io Z rosvenor Ln \ C j b= S 
7 \ Rock > x) 

OW, \ . 
& ff Es YE reek 

in sf a x 

t 

3, ; EINE dap 
"a men > 5) eA \) “ 

SVF a Cab “i 5 \-s ae a ee & 
o os . ~ Z 2 Fo ‘ahs Cl oN fi ‘ > . : 1) { hn NS ; % a S ree Se 

} be " +, q o ~ Sea bs ” £ + 4 . 
Le fe 2 B Chevy 

~ ; y mSVa! : a ie 
o4 1 

b
y
 

co 

j 
A 

An
y 

/ 
Ke 

/ 
Ma

g 
Rd 

KK 
Bi
e 
O
M
 

i
O
 

Jf
 

=
 

< 
re
 

f 
na
s 

/ 
yy 

sx
90
7 

¥ 

t
=
 

“
0
 

yp / 

} 
8 

/ 
y:
 

O
N
 

a | 

s 
| L 

, 

o
n
t
o
 

1
2
0
s
 

j 

: > . \ a ee g 
2 ome Zl elise FS AUN 

: fb ©, Ar ” 

Be 5 | wary rf : } 

Co
nn

ec
ti

cu
 

+ 

Me 

Roo 
Creek Golf 
Course Chillum 

——\——-Military-Rad- NW NS” D My. 

—
1
6
t
h
:
-
S
t
N
W
—
4
 

; \ , 
\ \ Diigtarlia 4 

__—polley ‘Mag, ; CRerrvgi 

UMicLean 

Description 

The Planning Board will receive an update on Phase 1 of the Mapping Segregation project to provide 

comments and feedback to staff. 

Montgomery County 

Planning Board 

2425 Reedie Drive, Floor 14 

Wheaton, MD 20902 

Completed: November 23, 2022 MCPB 

Item No. 10 

12-1-2022 

Montgomeryplanning.org



Planning Staff 

J John Liebertz, Cultural Resource Planner Ill, Countywide Planning & Policy, 

L john. liebertz@montgomeryplanning.org, 301-563-3405 

Rebeccah Ballo, Historic Preservation Supervisor, Countywide Planning & Policy, 

RB rebeccah.ballo@montgomeryplanning.org, 301-563-3404 

SAS Jason Sartori, Chief, Countywide Planning & Policy, 

jason.sartori@montgomeryplanning.org, 301-495-2172 

Ft summary: 

Montgomery Planning’s Historic Preservation Office and Geographic Information Systems (GIS) teams built a 

mapping tool that illustrates discriminatory housing practices, historical patterns of segregation, and Black 

homeownership in the Downcounty Planning Area of Montgomery County. A working draft of the online 

project mapping tool is now publicly available. 

The scope included an examination of similar projects nationwide and investigation of redlining, racial 

restrictive covenants, and mortgages refinanced by the Home Owners’ Loan Corporation (HOLC) in 

Montgomery County. As the HOLC “redlining” maps are not available for Washington, D.C. or its environs, 

the project team focused its efforts on the documentation of racial restrictive covenants which were private 

contractual agreements that prohibited the sale, rent, lease, or occupation of property based on a person’s 

race, ethnicity, or religious affiliation. 

The research illustrated the wide-spread use of racial restrictive covenants throughout the Downcounty 

Planning Area. The researchers selectively sampled 1,763 subdivision plats recorded between 1873 and 1952 

for racial restrictive covenants. Staff found that properties associated with at least 728 record plats included 

such covenants (41%). An additional 63 record plats (3.5%) may have included racial restrictive covenants 

based on historical precedent. 

Various forms of discriminatory housing practices continued in Montgomery County after the Supreme 

Court’s decision in Shelley v. Kraemer (1948) found racial restrictive covenants unenforceable by the state. 

These actions continued to limit opportunities for current and prospective Black residents. The practice of 

writing racial restrictive covenants into land records was not illegal until the Fair Housing Act (1968). 

Researchers examined 409 loans from the HOLC to Montgomery County Residents. Staff concluded that 400 

white residents and seven Black residents financed their mortgages with the HOLC. Two of the property 

owners’ race could not be determined. The limited data suggests that the HOLC provided loans to Black 

residents of Montgomery County at a lower rate proportional to their share of homeownership. 

Takoma Park is examined as a case study illustrating the impact of racial covenants on the growth and 

development of the community and its amenities. 

Further opportunities for historical research are summarized in the attached draft project report. 

Mapping Segregation Project 1



OVERVIEW 

Various forms of legal prejudicial housing practices existed in the United States prior to adoption of 

the Fair Housing Act (1968), which prohibited discrimination concerning the sale, rental, and financing 

of housing based on race, religion, national origin, sex, and, as amended, handicap and family status. 

Institutional racism contributed to the disproportionately and persistently low rates of 

homeownership and accumulation of housing wealth among Black Americans. In Montgomery 

County, the private and public sectors channeled racial population growth and influenced the spatial 

development of the county. These racial population shifts occurred due to the specific actions of land 

developers, property owners, real estate boards, and the government who used or supported de jure 

and de facto segregation to limit opportunities for Black Americans and control the development of 

entire communities. 

This study is part of a cohort of recent scholarship that has illuminated the scope of discriminatory 

housing practices. These practices, including the creation of racial restrictive covenants, were 

contributors to the persistent wealth gap between Black and white people. Housing discrimination 

either denied homeownership opportunities to Black people altogether or confined them to isolated 

neighborhoods where disinvestment and devaluation accumulated.’ 

Beginning in 2021, Montgomery Planning’s Historic Preservation Office assisted by the Geographic 

Information Systems (GIS) Team endeavored to build a mapping tool that illustrated historical 

patterns of segregation in the Downcounty Planning Area to advance the County’s commitment to 

racial equity. The scope of the inquiry started with an examination of similar projects nationwide and 

a literature review of discriminatory housing practices. The initial three areas of investigation included 

redlining, mortgages refinanced by the Home Owners’ Loan Corporation (HOLC), and racial restrictive 

covenants. As research progressed, the project focused on the use of racial restrictive covenants. 

The attached draft report presents the historic context regarding discriminatory housing practices in 

the twentieth century and results of the project team’s research and documentation of land records. 

In addition, the Mapping Segregation Project mapping tool provides public access to the data and 

analysis recorded by the project team. 

The team pursued and expanded upon several topics that were related to the initial scope of work, 

and some that were tangentially related, but provided detailed information (such as in Takoma Park) 

that could be replicated for other community-based case studies. The team accomplished the initial 

project goal to research and map the trend of racial restrictive covenants within the Downcounty 

Planning Area, and then analyzed property, people, and lender specific information to develop a 

narrative describing the pervasiveness of racial discrimination in Montgomery County real estate and 

building practices. 

1 Richard Rothstein, The Color of Law: A Forgotten History of How Our Government Segregated America (New York: 

Liveright Publishing Corporation, 2017). 

(*) Mapping Segregation Project 2



At this time, the project team is partnering with Research and Strategic Projects Division staff to 

analyze the legacy of racial restrictive covenants to see if there is any clear correlation with existing 

racial and demographic profiles of census tracts or other designated areas of the County (such as 

Equity Focus Areas). This forthcoming research would complete the final portion of the project scope 

outlined in Phase 1. 

The project team will report back to the Planning Board on the results of the research and address any 

questions or comments from that effort and from this December briefing in early 2023. At that time, 

the team will finalize the project report to transmit it to the County Council. 

The team believes that several important lines of inquiry have been established in this project that 

can be further developed by historians, academics, the Planning Department, and individuals looking 

to understand the history of the County. In Phase 2 of the project, for which funding is being requested 

in FY24, the research methodology of looking to the deed records, loan records, and other primary 

source documentation could be expanded and broadened geographically to other County planning 

areas, or could be used for deeper analysis of significant individuals and trends at the community 

level. A draft scope for Phase 2 will be prepared at the completion of this initial phase. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff requests that the Planning Board: 

1) Review the project mapping tool and the attached project report. 

2) Provide comments for staff to address in the next briefing. 

ATTACHMENT 

Attachment A: Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation Report: Racial Restrictive Covenants, Black 

Homeownership, and HOLC Loans in the Downcounty Planning Area 

Mapping Segregation Project 3



4 Montgomery Planning 

ATTACHMENT A 

WORKING DRAFT OF THE MAPPING SEGREGATION REPORT: 

RACIAL RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, BLACK HOMEOWNERSHIP, 

AND HOLC LOANS IN THE DOWNCOUNTY PLANNING AREA 

7 \ * Ry . 

Siverspatg Ade i 
y ») PS ~ = 

v 
~ 

> F r 
Ys 

Kee le t\e 
» % takoma Ratk> -2aNe = 

Description: 

The working draft of the report documents the history and effects of discriminatory housing practices 

in Montgomery County, Maryland. The project is a collaboration of the Historic Preservation Office and 

Geographic Information System team to build a mapping tool that shows patterns of segregation in the 

Downcounty Planning Area. 

Date: 

December 1, 2022 

Montgomeryplanning.org



Table of Contents 

INTFOCUCTION .............cccccccccccccccccececccccccccccccccnccccccccccscacscncscecncnccccscscsescscscscscscececececececcececscscececs 1 

Redlining, the Home Owners’ Loan Corporation, the Federal Housing Administration, and 

Private LONGING ...........ccssscccsssccnsscccssscccssscccsssccsssccnsssccsssccusescceseccueseccusesceesessuessesecessuesessuccsenes 3 

Home Owners’ Loan Corporation ........ccccccccsssssceseecesesssseeeeceseeussesecsceessseseuscuecsssesseececesaeeseecesessteaeerseseaas 4 

Home Owners’ Loan Corporation and Montgomery Count y...........ccccccssscsssscsssssssscecesssseeeceecesessteeseeseseaas 4 

Mortgage Providers .0.........ccsssccccccesssssnaceceecssessaeeceecessssaeeeeecessesaaeseeseseeseaeseseeseeesaseesseeeesussesseescessuseuseesneneass 7 

Federal Housing ACMINiStration ..........cccccccssssssceccecessssseeceecesssssseseecesesseeeseseesessesesessesesesssesseeceecsseeseeseecenas 7 

The FHA, Private Lending Practices, and Montgomery COUNtY.............:::cccccesessssecesseeseeesssseseeceecssssseeeeeees 9 

Racial Restrictive COVENANTS ............cccssssscccsssscccccsssccccnssseccceeseccccescccceessecceeessesececsessececscsesees 12 

Project Methodology .............ccccscssesssseaeeceeceeceeceseesseseeseusaaeaesesesesseesesssecesesscussusaessssseseceseececcceesssseaeeeaeeeess 12 

Early Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1904-1919 00... ccccesesssssseseesessssuseseeens 13 

Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1920-1933 ..........ccccsesssseceeseeeessssseseeeeessssseeeeeess 18 

Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1934-1948 .........ccccsesssseceeseseessssseeeeeessssseeeeeens 20 

Racial Restrictive Covenants and De Facto Segregation in Montgomery County: 1949-1968 ...........0... 25 

Fair Housing Ordinance and Law: 1967-1968 ............ccccsssssssssssseseeseeseeeesessessssssssssssesseecesceecesecessnssstesaeanes 32 

Case Study: Takoma Park..............sssccsssscccsseccnescccnsecccencccucceececscccescscucscececeseneseecucesececessueneeses 33 

CONCIUSION...........ccsssscccsssccnsscccnsscccsnecccencccnssecceseccueneccusececeseccuessececescuesessuceeececeseuecesscessueceseus 36 

Appendix: Project Deliverables ................cscssssccsssscccssscccsseccnssccceseccceneccusneccesssecenscceeccescsseuens 38 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"@) i



Introduction 

Discrimination targeting racial and ethnic minorities by private citizens and the government was 

widespread and pervasive at nearly all levels of society in the United States until well into the twentieth 

century. Various forms of legal prejudicial housing practices existed in the United States prior to signing 

of the Fair Housing Act (1968) that prohibited discrimination concerning the sale, rental, and financing of 

housing based on race, religion, national origin, sex, and, as amended, handicap and family status. 

Institutional racism contributed to the disproportionately and persistently low rates of homeownership 

and accumulation of housing wealth among Black Americans. In Montgomery County, the private and 

public sectors channeled racial population growth and influenced the spatial development of the 

county. These racial population shifts occurred due to the specific actions of land developers, property 

owners, real estate boards, and the government who used or supported de jure and de facto 

segregation to limit opportunities for Black Americans and control the development of entire 

communities. 

Beginning in 2021, Montgomery Planning’s Historic Preservation Office assisted by the Geographic 

Information Systems (GIS) Team built a mapping tool that illustrates historical patterns of segregation in 

the Downcounty Planning Area to advance the county’s commitment to racial equity. The scope of our 

inquiry started with an examination of similar projects nationwide and a literature review of 

discriminatory housing practices.’ Our initial three areas of investigation included redlining, mortgages 

refinanced by the Home Owners’ Loan Corporation (HOLC), and racial restrictive covenants. The 

research team also expanded the focus in part to capture single-family housing restrictive covenants 

that appeared within the deed records. As research progressed, the project focused on the use of racial 

restrictive covenants due to its importance to the built environment paired with the availability and 

amount of data that could be analyzed and interpreted. A working draft of the GIS map with 

accompanying data tables is available at this link: Mapping Segregation Project. A complete list of 

deliverables is in included in the report appendix. 

The research illustrated the wide-spread use of racial restrictive covenants throughout the Downcounty 

Planning Area. Racial restrictive covenants are but one of many tools that developers, realtors, and 

homeowners used to prevent the expansion of Black homeownership. Covenants, racial steering, lack of 

financing options, threats of violence, all reflected the power of de facto and de jure segregation at 

limiting housing opportunities for prospective Black residents in the suburbs. These discriminatory 

housing practices created a barrier around suburban property outside of the nation’s capital. As 

discussed later in this report, the team centered its research on racial restrictive covenants as there are 

no HOLC “redlining” maps in existence for Washington, D.C. or its environs. This is a limiting factor 

shared by most jurisdictions as only 200 or so cities were mapped by the HOLC. With no existing 

1 The Downcounty Planning Area incorporates the majority of land located within Interstate 495 (Capital Beltway). 

Communities excluded from the Downcounty Planning Area include North Hills Sligo Park and Indian Spring 

Terrace. 

2 Several communities have undertaken efforts to document historical discriminatory practices. Mapping 

Segregation DC and Segregated Seattle are the most thorough and applicable to Montgomery County’s current 

efforts. Restricted covenants factor prominently in both projects, and both also include related historical 

information. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"@) 1



historical map of racially prejudicial lending and land development practices, the project team 

endeavored to create its own mapping tool, using the language of racial restrictive deed covenants as 

the data basis for the project. As this report and the accompanying maps illustrate, racial discrimination 

was pervasive across Montgomery County, across neighborhoods and municipalities, east to west across 

the planning area. Individual stories illustrating this history and its impact on families and individual 

communities, culminating in a case study of the Black community of Takoma Park, are included in the 

narrative. 

Finally, there are the critical population shifts in Montgomery County that must be considered when 

examining prejudiced housing policies in the twentieth century. For the first 20 years after the Civil War, 

the Black population remained relatively stable and accounted for approximately 36% of the county’s 

population. Montgomery County had 7,434 and 9,685 Black residents in 1870 and 1890, respectively. 

From 1890 to 1960, the Black population stagnated and at times decreased while the white population 

grew exponentially. Between 1890 and 1960, the white population increased from 17,500 to 327,736 

(+1,773 %). In comparison, the Black population increased from 9,685 to 11,527 (+19 %) (Figure 1). The 

analysis suggests that racial steering of the Black population through privately enacted restricted 

covenants coupled with the culture of discrimination and hostility towards Black residents could have 

artificially constrained population growth that would have occurred naturally during the population 

booms following the Second World War. The efforts by the NAACP and local activists to open the 

suburbs to people of color is also detailed in the report. 

Population in 1890 Population in 1960 

11,527 
3% 

17,500 
64% 

327,736 
97% 

a White m# Black @ White m Black 

Figure 1: Black and white populations in Montgomery County in 1890 and 1960. 

Source: United States Federal Census. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"@e) 2



Redlining, the Home Owners’ Loan Corporation, the Federal Housing 

Administration, and Private Lending 

The general public has a heightened awareness of “redlining,” but the term has often become a catchall 

for various types of race-based housing discrimination. Redlining refers to mortgage lending decisions 

based on the location and physical characteristics of a property and its owners (class, race, and 

ethnicity). The term originated from mapmakers who shaded or outlined certain communities red to 

indicate areas of higher risk where loans should be limited or denied. Almost all Black communities were 

noted as high risk for investments across the United States. The Home Owners’ Loan Corporation (HOLC) 

Residential Security Maps (Figure 2) that color-coded 239 American cities offer the best illustration of 

discriminatory assessments made in the mid-twentieth century. Over the last several years, however, 

historians have adeptly questioned the influence of the HOLC-specific maps on nationwide, private 

lending practices and subsequent development patterns. These lending assessments predated the HOLC 

and were proliferated by the Federal Housing Administration (FHA). The FHA created their own set of 

maps (Figure 3) and had a critical role in the housing market as the agency decided whether to insure 

mortgages in certain locations and adhered to discriminatory practices. There is no academic consensus 

about which agency bears the greatest responsibility for promulgating the redlining or racially-centered 

maps that drove real estate lending and building practices, but both agencies legitimized the practice at 

the federal level to the detriment of people of color. 

SN 

MAP OF THE METROPOLITAN AREA OF 

WASHINGTON, D. C. 

Figures 2 and 3: Residential Security Map of Baltimore, Maryland, created by the HOLC (left) and Residential Sub-Area Map of 

Washington, D.C. created by the FHA (right). 

Source: Home Owners’ Loan Corporation, Division of Research and Statistics, “Residential Security Map of Baltimore, Md.,” 

(1937), John Hopkins University; Federal Housing Administration, Division of Economics & Statistics, “Map of Metropolitan Area 

of Washington, D.C.,” (1937), http://www.mappingsegregationdc.org (accessed November 21, 2022). 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation Repor 3



Home Owners’ Loan Corporation 

During the New Deal, President Franklin Roosevelt and Congress passed the Home Owners’ Loan Act 

(1933) and then the National Housing Act (1934) to forestall the complete collapse of the real estate 

lending market for rental and owner-occupied properties at the onset of the Great Depression. The first 

law established the Home Owner’s Loan Corporation (HOLC)—an agency with a mission spanning two 

discrete phases. During the first phase, the organization focused on acquiring distressed residential 

mortgages from lenders and refinancing them with easier terms to free capital for reinvestment. The 

government acquired existing mortgages as lenders turned over their holdings for government bonds as 

this guaranteed a return on their investment. The agency (which stopped receiving new applications in 

June 1935) held mortgages on one out of every ten nonfarm, owner-occupied dwellings and nearly 20% 

of the nation’s home mortgage debt.? Recent scholarship demonstrates that the agency often provided 

loans to racial and ethnic groups proportional to their levels of homeownership. Race, however, clearly 

played a role as the agency identified the racial makeup of applicant’s neighborhoods and constrained 

opportunities within the existing pattern of segregation. Furthermore, the recapitalization of lenders 

further benefited white creditors who held most mortgages on Black-owned homes.‘ 

The HOLC managed, sold, and eventually liquidated its real estate holdings (which it acquired through 

defaults) in its second phase (1935-1951). It was during this time that the agency created its 

notorious redlining maps (Figure 2). The Mortgagee Rehabilitation Division of the HOLC surveyed over 

200 cities and identified nonwhite and other neighborhoods as having poor investment potential. 

Although the HOLC maps reveal strikingly racist language and criteria used to classify neighborhoods, 

they were less instrumental in creating patterns of residential segregation. This is because the HOLC had 

already made 90% of its loans prior to the creation of their maps. Additionally, evidence suggests the 

agency did not broadly share their maps with other government agencies such as the Federal Housing 

Administration or private institutions. The HOLC created the maps as an internal tool to understand the 

risks of the agency’s mortgage portfolio and guide the resale of defaulted properties. Thus, rather than 

creating housing segregation, the HOLC program appears to have further entrenched existing patterns 

of housing discrimination by keeping people in their already-segregated neighborhoods and by 

stabilizing the mostly white banking and finance industry.” 

Home Owners’ Loan Corporation and Montgomery County 

In “New Evidence of Redlining by Federal Housing Programs in the 1930s,” (2020) Price Fishback et. al. 

reviewed every loan made by the HOLC between 1933 and 1936 in three municipalities (Baltimore, MD; 

Peoria, IL; and Greensboro, NC). The evidence showed that the HOLC refinanced loans in neighborhoods 

throughout each city and that the share of loans made by the HOLC to Black Americans was closely 

3 Charles Courtemanche and Kenneth Snowden, “Repairing a Mortgage Crisis: HOLC Lending and its Impact on 

Local Housing Markets,” The Journal of Economic History 71, no. 2 (June 2011): 307-337; Charles Courtemanche 

and Kenneth A. Snowden, “Repairing a Mortgage Crisis: HOLC Lending and its Impact on Local Housing Markets,” 

National Bureau of Economic Research (July 2010), 2-5. 

4 For more information see Todd M. Michney and LaDale Winling, “New Perspectives on New Deal Housing Policy: 

Explicating and Mapping HOLC Loans to African Americans,” Journal of Urban History 46, no. 1 (2020), 150-180, 

http://www.sagepub.com. 

> Ibid. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"@) 4



proportional to the share of homeowners who were Black.° Our project team moved forward with a 

similar review of Montgomery County land records to determine the number of HOLC loans made to 

Black residents. These data sets had not previously been researched or compiled for Montgomery 

County. The project’s research suggests that the HOLC provided loans to Black residents of Montgomery 

County at a lower rate (1.7%) proportional to their share of homeownership (4.8%). 

The Fifth Annual Report of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board (1937) noted that the Home Owners’ 

Loan Corporation received 811 applications for properties in Montgomery County by June 1936. Three 

hundred and eighty-seven loans were rejected or withdrawn and 424 loans were completed. The loans 

equaled $2,569,596. This accounted for 4.8% of the approximate 8,856 nonfarm homes in the County 

(Figure 4).’ 

Applications Owned 

# of withdrawn or rejected Loans closed Nonfarm Homes 

Applications % Mortgages 

County Received # % # S # to the HOLC 

Anne Arundel 1,361 638 46.9 723 1,892,096 5,154 14 

Baltimore 3,303 1,220 36.9 2,083 7,213,937 | 14,655 14.2 

Baltimore City 17,888 7,528 42.1 10,360 27,432,396 | 97,465 10.6 

Howard 136 67 49.3 69 194,039 1,083 6.4 

Montgomery 811 387 47.7 424 2,569,596 6,268 6.8 

Prince George’s 994 438 44.1 556 1,666,139 6,980 8 

Queen Anne 75 60 80 15 27,957 1,090 1.4 

Figure 4: Percent analysis of refinancing operations completed and percent of owned non-farm homes mortgaged to the HOLC 

by counties as of June 12, 1936. The project team selected counties within close proximity to Montgomery County. 

Source: Federal Home Loan Bank Board, Fifth Annual Report of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board, For the Period July 1, 1936 

through June 30, 1937 (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1938), 183. 

Montgomery County land records index noted 409 loans from the HOLC to property owners before June 

1936. There were 18 loans in 1933, 270 loans in 1934, 92 loans in 1935, and 29 loans in 1936. The 

project team cross-referenced the name of each property owner (and their partner if listed in the 

mortgage) with United States Federal Census records, military records, and other similar databases to 

determine the individual’s race. We concluded that 400 white and 7 Black residents financed their 

° Price Fishback, Jonathan Rose, Ken Snowden, and Thomas Storrs, “New Evidence on Redlining by Federal Housing 

Programs in the 1930s,” Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago, Working Paper 2022-01, January 3, 2022, 

https://www.chicagofed.org (accessed October 27, 2022). 

7 The authors of the Fifth Annual Report of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board (1937) used the number of nonfarm 

houses enumerated in the 1930 United States Federal Census (which equaled 6,268 homes) to determine the 

agency completed 6.8% of the loans in the County. However, the County experienced substantial growth in the 

1930s. The 1940 United States Federal Census noted at least 10,927 nonfarm houses. Staff approximated that 

there would have been 8,856 nonfarm houses in 1937. Therefore, this dropped the percent of mortgages closed by 

the HOLC to approximately 4.8%. Federal Home Loan Bank Board, Fifth Annual Report of the Federal Home Loan 

Bank Board, For the Period July 1, 1936 through June 30, 1937 (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 

1938), 183. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"“@) 5



mortgages with the HOLC. Two of the property owner’s race could not be determined.® Black residents 

comprised 1.7% of the identified closed mortgages (Figure 5). 

Applications to the HOLC Race of Mortgagee 

Rejected or Withdrawn 

387 
a 

“ 

Closed 

424 

400, 98% 

= Closed m Rejected or Withdrawn = Black # White 

Figure 5: Number of applications sent to the HOLC office by Montgomery County residents (left) and the breakdown on closed 

loans by race (right). Note that the project team found only 409 closed loans in the land records while the HOLC reported 424 

closed loans in the County. 

In 1940, Montgomery County had a population of 83,912 residents. The Black population of 8,889 

persons accounted for 11% of Montgomery County. Black families resided in 1,118 of the 18,613 

nonfarm (including Takoma Park) units that were owned or rented. In addition, Black owners resided in 

approximately 568 out of the 11,923 owner-occupied units and accounted for 4.8% of the total owner- 

occupied dwellings in the County (excluding rural farms).? 

Five of the seven black homeowners who received loans from the HOLC lived in Rockville, Maryland. 

Three of the five resided in the historically Black community of Lincoln Park (Figure 6). In total, the HOLC 

loaned Black residents $13,375.96. The mortgages ranged from $382 to $3,666 with an average of 

$1,910.85 and 5% interest rate. The average loan amount was $6,060.36 for all HOLC loans in the 

County. Staff did not examine whether any of the HOLC’s foreclosed properties in Montgomery County 

were sold to Black residents. 

8 There were two individuals whose race could not be determined with archival records. This included: 1) Arthur C. 

Johnson; and 2) Victor H. Gittins and Emma Gittins. 

° United States Department of Commerce, Sixteenth Census of the United States: 1940 Housing, Vol. II, General 

Characteristics, Part Ill: lowa to Montana (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1943), 469. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"“@) 6



“ ‘ 
Pa 

ok “es %, 
7. > 

2 < A * 
th 

La ! Ri, 
a s Patuxe 

Sugarioaf ¢ Little Bennett e_ River 
Mountain Z a Regional Park aoN = 

s 
. WO A ‘\ 

NRM s a 
LU 

e wy $ 
4 ‘ 
AY 

4 
Nn 

” 
S. E f 

j Man bs 
- 

-" 
{ 

e 
>, ’ ? t 

i 

t t 
os 

4 ‘ ais \ 
‘ 

4 
\ 

: “- ‘ . y 
1 ‘ 

F 

\ 
a / 

’ 
st BY McK 

A te WMA 
¥. Sieg os rR 

. 7 _—— re 

<5 > 
Nera, > , 
bat “a o 

: Fo 
’ 

RRiVe 5 / 
» (™ 

tee / 
a> om J 

‘ 
‘ fy 
t 

? t ? - a 

‘ ay ¥ . = t s @ Rock : a yX= 
? Creek Ne ys alk  .- mr. fa ¢@ Park * 

airfax ¢oro® ¢ 
— “ 7 

Sno 
Du//,. of ¢ ami SAir See 

Figure 6: Map of refinanced loans from the HOLC to Black residents of Montgomery County. Five of the seven residents lived in 

Rockville primarily near the Lincoln Park community. The red pins represent a Black-owned household. 

Mortgage Providers 

In addition to reviewing the HOLC loan data, the project team documented additional mortgages 

associated with the Black-owned properties and their respective owners. Though statistically small due 

to the limited amount of time the team was able to devote to this particular topic, the information will 

be shared on our GIS tools to allow for historians and community members to further explore lending 

practices in Montgomery County. One example of the data illustrated the financial burden placed on 

Black homeowners who had limited access to FHA-insured mortgages. The few who received 

conventional mortgages paid higher interest rates. For example, the Hawkins family likely were one of 

the few Black households who received an FHA-insured mortgage. The terms from the Southern 

Maryland National Bank of La Plata included the typical 5% interest rate associated with FHA-financing. 

The Hawkins received a $5,600 loan and paid $36.96 monthly. Other families such the Parkers and 

Woods received less favorable terms. The Bank of Bethesda and Northwestern Savings and Loan 

Association closed loans with the families but charged a 6% interest rate. Higher interest rates lowered 

investment potential for Black homeowners. 

Federal Housing Administration 

President Roosevelt signed the National Housing Act, which established the Federal Housing 

Administration (FHA) in 1934. The FHA had two central policy goals: 1) create an economically sound, 

publicly-sponsored, system of mortgage insurance; and 2) revive the depressed residential construction 

industry that collapsed during the Great Depression. While the Home Owners’ Loan Corporation (HOLC) 

lending program focused on refinancing, the FHA’s provided insurance for loans for new home 

construction and home improvement (Figure 7). 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"@)



. RATION HOU S LG A OMA FR FEDERAL 

our Rent Money 
a will BIVa home] 

& FHA INSURED |, 
FINANCING 4 

pereecretn) swsan 

Figure 7: Advertisement for FHA insured housing, 1937-1938. 

Source: Harris & Ewing Photograph Collection, Library of Congress. 

The FHA had a profound impact on the nationwide exacerbation of residential racial segregation as it 

overwhelmingly insured loans for new construction in mostly white suburban communities. The FHA 

developed a risk-rating system that influenced private lenders and produced widely disseminated 

instructions for appraising neighborhood risk through its Underwriting Manual. Lenders adopted FHA’s 

guidelines to secure FHA insurance, which protected against potential loss and principally guaranteed 

resale of the loan on the secondary mortgage market. The FHA perceived neighborhood change, 

specifically racial transitions, as a cause for diminished property values.?° 

The Underwriting Manual (1938) stated the following (Figure 8): 

Areas surrounding a location are investigated to determine whether incompatible racial 

and social groups are present, for the purpose of making a prediction regarding the 

probability of the location being invaded by such groups. If a neighborhood is to retain 

Stability, it is necessary that properties shall continue to be occupied by the same social 

and racial classes. A change in social or racial occupancy generally contributes to 

instability and a decline in values.** 

The Underwriting Manual also advocated for including and enforcing deed restrictions (including racial 

restrictive covenants) at the time of sale as an effective way of preventing a house’s—and eventually a 

neighborhood’s—value from declining due to a change in its racial composition.” These discriminatory 

views were not new to the real estate industry, but had never been applied or endorsed by the federal 

government as no previous federal mortgage programs existed. 

10 Amy E. Hiller, “Redlining and the Homeowners’ Loan Corporation,” Departmental Papers (City and Regional 

Planning) (2003): 402-405; John Kimble, “Insuring Inequality: The Role of the Federal Housing Administration in the 

Urban Ghettoization of African Americans,” Law & Social Inquiry 32, no. 2 (Spring 2007): 402-410. 

11 Federal Housing Administration, Underwriting Manual: Underwriting and Valuation Procedure Under Title I! of 

the National Housing Act (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1938), 936. 

12 Federal Housing Administration, Underwriting Manual: Underwriting and Valuation Procedure Under Title I! of 

the National Housing Act (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1938), 978-980. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"@) 8



UNDERWRITING MANUAL 

936-939 

How Owners of Homes developed neighborhood areas present conditions which are far dif- 
_ ferent from that which is regarded as good housing practice. Little 

(8 Business Property protection is offered to such a neighborhood because of the prob- 

ability that new and more attractive competing neighborhoods may 
| can secure the BENEFIT of the be developed. The solidly built up neighborhood where good hous- 

ing has not been provided is readily subject to change in occupancy. 
Narrow streets, excessive lot coverage, inadequate light and air, and 
poor circulation within the neighborhood area, as well as the inter- e 

| \ atio nN ql mixture of types, price levels, and a general absence of architectural 
attractiveness in dwellings, represent adverse influences in themselves. 

bs 937. Quality of Neighboring Development, The quality 
OUS ine ct of dwelling construction is significant, inasmuch as unsubstantial, 

flimsy construction is subject to rapid deterioration which hastens 
The Better Housing Program - Sponsored by the lowering of class of occupancy. The same result may be expected 
the U. S. Government enables property owners for locations whose properties present freakish architectural designs. 
to finance repairs & improvements at Low cost The rating will be adversely affected if the neighboring development 

consists of old, obsolete dwellings. The presence of overimprove- 
ment or underimprovement in the neighborhood constitutes a condi- 
tion which may adversely affect location ratings. Areas surround- 

| ing a location are investigated to determine whether incompatible 
# Sik, racial and social groups are present, for the purpose of making a 
A Pe = ey: Soaueahpe oe orene prediction regarding the probability of the location being invaded 

ar by such groups. If a neighborhood is to retain stability, it is neces- 
sary that properties shall continue to be occupied by the same social 
and racial classes. A change in social or racial occupancy generally 

__ contributes to instability and a decline i in values. 

WASHINGTON 

Dc. 

Figures 8 and 9: Booklet that outlines how property and business owners can take advantage of the National Housing Act (left) 

and excerpts of the FHA’s Underwriting Manual (right) used and shared with private lenders to appraise houses. 

Source: Federal Housing Administration, How Owners of Homes & Business Property can secure the Benefit of the National 

Housing Act, (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1934), Google Books; Federal Housing Administration, 

Underwriting Manual: Underwriting and Valuation Procedure Under Title I! of the National Housing Act (Washington, D.C.: 

Government Printing Office, 1938), 936. 

The FHA, Private Lending Practices, and Montgomery County 

The FHA conducted surveys and produced their own series of evaluation maps. Between 1937 and 1942, 

the agency created Housing Market Analyses for select cities including the District of Columbia. The 

Residential Sub-Areas map included sections of Montgomery County (Figure 10). The map identified a 

singular Black community in the Downcounty and graded the area “H.” This grade stated: 

The property is residential areas with this designation represents the negro developments 

and the lowest grade of residential area in the Washington Metropolitan Area. These 

areas have been developed especially for negroes or have been left open for negroes to 

build for themselves. There is not control of any kind of existing in these areas and they 

represent the very worst of heterogenous developments. These areas definitely do not 

include sections originally intended for white occupancy and now occupied by negroes. 

They are strictly areas intended for or permitting negro usage. The only possible future 

for properties in these areas is that the present scattered structures may be razed and 

new planned subdivisions instituted in their place. 

13 Federal Housing Administration, “Map of the Metropolitan Area of Washington, D.C. Showing Division of the 

Metropolitan Area into Residential Sub-Areas According to Type or Grade as Described in this Report,” (1937), 

http://www.mappingsegregationdc.org (accessed October 27, 2022). 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation Cs) 9



The subareas classification system included “Type S.” The FHA applied this designation to the land outside 

of the established residential areas. The administration stated: 

It simply indicates that the area has not been subdivided or that it is so far from the center 

of the area that a classification is unwarranted. Furthermore, these sections are 

essentially rural and there is a very small amount of building activity. A few towns such as 

Rockville...fall into these areas. Building activity within these town limits is not great and 

is influenced by local need rather than any demand for housing in the metropolitan 

district.** 

ee Legend 
f, oe 

, Grosvenor Ln 
°. ‘ 1940 Black Homeowners (Downcounty) 

1 o 

fe 
Downcounty Planning Area 

S 

Federal Housing Administration (1936-1937) 

Ca
 

on E
S
,
 

3 
1
¢
:
9
1
1
0
1
9
0
3
—
 

3)
 

} 

F
e
r
n
w
o
o
d
 

Rd 

» Residential Sub-Areas 
: : 

Walter. Bc 
Reed Nat! _ 

Military Med. 

jQ
 
G
u
i
m
 

OM, \ %; 

Figure 10: The FHA Residential Sub-Area Map shows limited sections of the Downcounty Planning Area. The mapmakers labeled 

a single Black community in Takoma Park as “H,” but failed to note the location of other Black communities. The orange pins 

note the locations of Black homeowners in 1940. 

Source: Federal Housing Administration, “Map of the Metropolitan Area of Washington, D.C. Showing Division of the 

Metropolitan Area into Residential Sub-Areas According to Type or Grade as Described in this Report,” (1937), 

http://www.mappingsegregationdc.org (accessed October 27, 2022). 

‘ 
~,

 
t 
-
 

re
 

aa
ti

 

ZS
 

Le cLean 

The FHA’s Residential Sub-Area map included several omissions. Notably, the surveyors failed to classify 

or acknowledge the existence of two of the three major Black communities in the Downcounty Planning 

Area. Specifically, Lyttonsville and the River Road communities were listed as part of Sub-Area B and E, 

which implicitly excluded Black neighborhoods. The neighborhood classifications do not match the 

historical reality on the ground in these specific communities. This suggests that historians and planners 

should proceed with caution when using this map as the primary source when determining how the 

FHA-graded homes and where they would insure mortgages. 

The project team did not research or analyze the FHA-insured mortgages in Montgomery County, but 

the practices of the agency had profound effects on the accumulation of wealth by Black Americans as 

14 Ibid. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation Co) 10



recognized by historians. It is estimated that Black Americans received less that 2% of all federally 

insured loans issued between 1945 and 1959.” In addition, the interest rates on federally insured 

mortgages were lower often than those on conventional mortgages.’° Therefore, the few black 

homeowners who could acquire properties in Montgomery County were at a disadvantage as the 

inaccessible but cheaper FHA loans allowed for the purchase of more expensive dwellings. 

In 1948, the Supreme Court ruled in Shelley v. Kraemer that enforcement of racial restrictive covenants 

in state court violated the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. The FHA slowly 

amended their regulations to prohibit racial restrictive covenants in 1950. This action, however, led to 

few immediate changes to the lending practices of private loan agencies or within the administration. | 

1953, Clarence Mitchell, Director of the Washington Bureau of the NAACP, stated the following 

regarding the inaction of the FHA and referenced Montgomery County in a congressional hearing: 

The FHA has a plan under which it says, “You cannot sign a restrictive covenant if you get 

FHA insurance.” Well, that does not mean a thing. | refer to it in my written testimony as 

a bawdy joke, and | use the word “bawdy” because | think it is that. It is indecent. It is 

indecent for the Government to be a party to an operation where the lender and the 

builder get together, they decide that they are going to build a project which everybody 

knows that only white people will be allowed to live in. When we raise an objection [to 

discriminatory practices], the Federal Government says. “You need not object to this, we 

have a provision in here which says there can be no restrictive covenants.” ...What it 

amounts to is that the FHA collaborates with the local communities in policies of 

restriction which say, “certain areas shall be for white people, certain areas shall be for 

colored people,” and if a builder tries to build in one of those areas which is for white 

people, he just does not get any help from FHA or anybody else.... We have owned land 

up there [Montgomery County] and other colored people have owned land. But that is 

the hardest place in the world to try to get any kind of FHA approval on housing 

construction, even though you own the land.*” 

In the 1960s, activists continued to direct complaints to practices of realtors and lending institutions in 

perpetuating segregation in the suburban areas surrounding Washington, D.C. Marjorie McKenzie 

Lawson, an attorney and Chair of the Housing Committee of the Washington Urban League, stated the 

following in a congressional hearing: 

There are 1,157,000 white people in suburban Maryland and Virginia, as compared with 

75,000 nonwhites. Washington not only has a wall that divides it, east and west...but it 

also has a wall around it. And this wall exists not so much for the purpose of keeping the 

enemy without from entering it, it is there to keep the enemy within from escaping. These 

1S Elizabeth Kneebone, Confronting Suburban Poverty in America (Washington, D.C.: Brookings Institute Press, 

2014), 8. 

16 | ouis Hyman, Debtor Nation: The History of America in Red Ink (Princeton, NJ: Princeton University Press, 2011 

143-145. 

17 United States Senate, Nomination of Albert M. Cole, Hearing Before the Committee on Banking and Currency 

(Washington, D.C., Government Printing Office, 1953): 32. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"@) 

n 

), 

11



walls have been established, in large part, or maintained, by the lending institutions active 

in the area.‘® 

Further analysis of the lending institutions and mortgages provided to Black residents of Montgomery 

County could be explored in additional phases of the project. Initial findings noted that several 

conventional mortgages to Black residents included an interest rate of 6%, higher than the maximum 

four-and-a-half to 5% interest rate allowed by the FHA between 1934 and 1956.” The project team 

documented mortgages closed by Black property owners and included them on the GIS map. Historians 

will be able to review and analyze the data to further explore the topic. 

Racial Restrictive Covenants 

Project Methodology 

The project team focused their effort on the documentation of racial restrictive covenants, which were 

private contractual agreements that prohibited the sale, rent, lease, or occupation of property to 

particular ethnic and religious groups. Real estate developers, neighborhood associations, and individual 

or cohorts of property owners placed these covenants in deeds, declarations of covenants, or other 

binding legal agreements in the County’s land records. These covenants barred primarily Black residents 

(as well as Jewish and Asian residents to a lesser extent) from new communities and constrained 

expansion of existing neighborhoods. A single developer could instantly limit access to dozens of 

dwellings in perpetuity to create racially homogenous white neighborhoods, which were considered 

desirable. These covenants legitimized the false belief that diversity led to economically depressed 

neighborhoods, established a baseline of racial exclusivity, and influenced the socio-economic growth of 

Montgomery County for the first 70 years of the twentieth century. 

The project team considered multiple approaches to capture racial restrictive covenants. Staff reviewed 

the approaches taken by other jurisdictions and reviewed the potential for each approach based on the 

availability of the County’s land records and number of staff dedicated to the project. The team first 

considered a parcel-by-parcel analysis, but found several issues with such an approach. Mainly, other 

jurisdictions who examined individual parcels had larger professional staffs or a team of volunteers to 

review the land records. Their projects also spanned many years or covered single municipalities such as 

the City of Charlottesville, VA. Even if our team used optical character recognition (or similar 

technologies) to convert the digitized land records into machine-readable text, a person would still need 

to attribute each record to a particular parcel and confirm the record. There was the potential for 

duplicate records if the covenant carried from deed to deed. Ultimately, we concluded this approach 

was too labor-intensive and would not support the project goals. 

18 United States Commission on Civil Rights, Hearing Before the United States Commission on Civil Rights—Housing 

Vol. 2 (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1959), 323. 

19 The regulated interest rate on FHA-insured mortgages remained relatively stable throughout the 1930s and 

1940s. The interest rate started at 5% in 1935 and was lowered to 4.5% in 1940 and 4.25% in 1950. John F. 

McDonald, Postwar Urban America: Demography, Economics, and Social Policies (New York: Routledge, 2015), 19. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “@) 12



As an alternative, we decided to take a selective sampling approach using the plat index as our starting 

point. The GIS-team previously had mapped all recorded plats in Montgomery County. In the 

Downcounty Planning Area, this included 2,013 plats recorded between 1873 and 1952. Typically, each 

plat included the name of the property owner (individual or company), which provided the team a name 

to search for in the deed index. Staff would review multiple properties in each subdivision sold by that 

person (or subsequent entities) to see if the land records included racial restrictive covenants. If the 

individual or developer who subdivided the property included a covenant, staff marked the entire 

subdivision as having racial restrictive covenants. Recorded plats where the property owner or 

developer regularly included covenants but didn’t for a particular subdivision were recorded as 

“oossible.” While the team likely did not capture every racial restrictive covenant associated with a 

record plat, the mapping tool shows general trends throughout the Downcounty Planning Area. We 

stopped our analysis in 1952 as it allowed us to capture at least four years of data after Shelley v. 

Kramaer found the judicial enforcement of the covenants to be unconstitutional. 

After review of all the record plats, the project team excluded 207 plats that were non-residential 

properties, roadway dedications, etc. and 43 plats that included subdivisions where the developer 

conveyed no properties prior to a resubdivision of the land. Staff found that properties associated with 

728 of the 1,763 recorded plats (41.2%) included racial restrictive covenants. An additional 63 of those 

properties (3.5%) likely included racial restrictive covenants based on historical precedent (Figure 11). 

The GIS team mapped all plats based on these classifications and included relevant information such as 

the property owner, races or ethnic groups discriminated against, and where to find such covenants 

reference in the land records. These maps will assist the Planning Department, the general public, and 

historians in future planning studies and research efforts. 

$ 
ay . CreekGo fan 

~~ Morrison St NV Course : 
\ Zz Peake 

Langley s \ , 
sa 4 ~ Military-Rd-NW h Mig. 
Park Z oe i’ 3 : zs 5 

B Bh scat ; . : = 
2 yan > 

’ 5 on NS 2 728, 41% 
2 2 ky 
c ane. 2 F 
y : a ae Re z 

angley \ > > A 2 = z 

rk Park " we S 4 

\ \ OS a 2 5 
ey" M, is) e servo} jan Ne tNWw St %, Baw p polley Wo, A a Reservgi an. Ness StN 5 t %. ° ° 63.4% 

Sy, Ba = 7 z z ? 
d: 2 e ye a 2 

s “, ey ed pay % nA w@ Racial Covenants Possible Racial Covenants 
MeLean &, ~ 3 u fs ! % @ 5 p aj hs, iniversity % 5 Z ; 

Bri te! 4 a =| @ No Racial Covenants 

Figure 11: Racial covenants associated with plats recorded in the Downcounty Planning Area (1873-1952). 

Early Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1904-1919 

In the early 1900s, transportation improvements including streetcar lines and improved roads to 

Montgomery County allowed real estate developers to target the white middle-class residents of 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “C) 13



Washington, D.C., with the promise of affordable suburban living in a natural and healthy environment. 

These residents often were fearful of unrestrained industrial and commercial development, increasing 

population densities, and migrant Black population deemed racially inferior by popular culture, 

scientists, and politicians. In the burgeoning area of Silver Spring, Robert Holt Easley recorded the first 

known racial restrictive covenant in the Downcounty Planning Area (and likely in all of Montgomery 

County) in 1904 (Figure 12). 

Figure 12: Robert H. Easley sale of property at Silver Spring Park. The land conveyance included a racial restrictive covenant (#5). 

Source: Montgomery County Circuit Court, “R. Holt and Louisa Easley to Randolph J. Eckloff,” September 8, 1904, Liber 180, Folio 

125. 

The racial restrictive covenant stated: 

And, whereas the death rate of persons of African descent is much greater than the death 

rate of the white race and affects injuriously the health of town or village communities, 

and as the permanent location of persons of African descent in such places as owners or 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"e&) 14



tenants, constitute an irreparable injury to the value and usefulness of real estate, in the 

interest of the public health and to prevent irreparable injury to the grantor, his heirs and 

assigns, and the owners of adjacent real state, the grantee, his heirs and assigns hereby 

covenant and agree with the grantor, R. Holt Easley, his heirs and assigns, that they will 

not sell, convey or rent the premises hereby conveyed, the whole or any part of any 

dwelling or structure thereon, to any person of African descent.”° 

Easley who resided in Halifax County, Virginia, was an attorney, real estate speculator, and former 

President of the Virginia State Chamber of Commerce. Silver Spring Park advertisements offered “the 

man of moderate means” an escape from “the city’s din and noise” and espoused the subdivision’s high 

altitude, commanding views, old growth trees, pure air, and absence of malaria all accessible ona 

streetcar line.** The racial restrictive covenant functioned to keep Black residents of moderate incomes 

from accessing the suburb and set the conditions for the development of the homogenous community. 

In the Downcounty, developers and owners used racial restrictive covenants sparingly at first. Between 

1904 and 1909, properties associated with 6 of the 27 recorded plats (22%) included such covenants. 

Harry M. Martin and Mark Stearman were the only two developers other than Robert Easley who barred 

Black residents on properties at the 3“ and 4" Additions to Chevy Chase and North Takoma, respectively 

(Figure 13). In the next decade (1910-1919), real estate developers included racial restrictive covenants 

in properties associated with 12 of the 36 recorded plats (33%). Subdivisions included Edgewood, 

Bradley Hills, Cabin John Park, Chevy Chase Park, and Hill-Crest, Takoma Park (Figure 14). 

acy BN ee Pas TTT aS ws se “ 

+ x , Rock Jen sy x & %, = 
2 eo S SS. Creek f A 9 — a - 

Cabin 5 < 6 if oo 3 = a ve Ea ‘ = - ~, 
bs f & ae ey - > a » rest € a - oe ik wil 

n % —_— o Xe 9 S’ oe view Ore Buck 
sv ——— x \ ¢ ee / Notthwest < ul Lodge 

4 = chSvVU3 ? , a Ss Nn / me BON Branch SVU 3 e L Park 

NN 0 om HN = ; 

{ = pe IN = { \ y “eo. B ¥ Ss : / 2 < 2, = : é ae i} oA Q es NS fi ¥ ° Walter = 3 2 « Adelphi 
Eat J S & Reed Nat! A , = SBS A fe P ¥ 
John 3 <= Military Med 185 - 7: 2 : S a 2 2 = Military Med Bt ‘ é y 
Ssvu4 > a Ctr T ry x y 5 ah af 

A A ES G t c Ge f é BS) Silversspring / Zig si Maeel 
‘ ~% 84 3 / S0lf ¢ 

Y iz % 
j KE 2 : “6 

I ee 3 a yR 
i} oA . 3 . » NN 2 x 

} s x Bethesda se ff rH, ¥ } 
es g S 3 j 6 

a - y. s =] oe 
_ x 700 ss Ss : B cf A Takoma Park 

J a Bin 3 ee, fe | 

{ ast % 2 Ree se f = ¢ 
¥ & tt eS 

‘ She pany” Réed Amy wk La 
tha JS Roc Medical . 4 2 
‘count ¥ Creek Center \ A ec 
Glut & ae >y w a 

z Sf e Park Van Buren St NW . of + Yas, The Mall 4 : BS Ky 4 4 Ee D ay f W at Prince 
¥ ock 5 Georges 

7 Creek Golf Sheridan St NW ; I = Héurich 
. i trison St NW Course = Chillum = 

y 2 _~ Peabody St NW 
S litary Ww a ‘< Y Military-Rd-N . i2 Miss, 6, 22% 

ioe Brag = Se vA 
i D . 5 ® My. 

9 na 5 », <a £ ham‘StN : ~ F f= ngraha’ 
oY cs } & = F = 

, = Re 
Langley \ a c 3 £ z r 

k Park ~o S 

aati ll = 
polley"Mag, \ a Reservoi jan Ness StNW.@ i o Pam = 

ne * e Pa C % > 7 
tf = Zz < 4 = 

INS eRe eens ton 21, 78% 
hp 6 RS A ee American j s Z 3 tie 
clean 4, ‘XN 9 University % e 3 ONG 

%p ’ cs) 3S % Soldier — - C a oe < 
tig tf % > zZ hima @ Racial Covenants  m# No Racial Covenants 

s ©, wa < Pe 

0 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “R. Holt and Louisa Easley to Randolph J. Eckloff,” September 8, 1904, Liber 
180, Folio 125. 

21 “Silver Spring Park,” Washington Post, May 20, 1907, Proquest; “Silver Spring Park” Washington Herald, 
September 29, 1907, Chronicling America 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"C) 15



Figure 13: Racial covenants associated with record plats in the Downcounty Planning Area (1904-1909). 

vP 5 Bethesda 7 | ‘na oo 1910-1919 
: ‘ veoh < v j ee 

Cabin < 57 Se . . ; —— rr ae Ms 

ot +7 . Ss <p : NE Pore te ht mere 4 / 2 et : 2 / pas 

‘ ‘ tf esti, / y 

{ \ ee / ao “a 5 
Jj e 4 Adeiphi 

f = livetsspr J 2 7 h 

\ ; a ; +f 

\ | yee . ‘ t ‘ ‘\ 
E : Eethes da csi ‘ } 

ie IG \ G, = \ F 4 ‘y i ma Patk 

j ay Wot : 3 Chen , jolie \ 
| Léisag, wn, sy 1 Sanne 5 " or — ; nn 

Rare etme r ee 
ee hang: jgoor- NG wa 1 f i 

\ “a \ oq M Ran 

XN se Ww 

\ J : 

os \ A 

\ eee 
+ *e, 7, a t vy, 7 

clean han We, Ps niver eit ‘ % side] @ Racial Covenants ™ No Racial Covenants 

Figure 14: Racial covenants associated with plats recorded in the Downcounty Planning Area (1910-1919). 

Historian Richard Rothstein contended that developers used covenants to create a new permanent 

“amenity” in areas lacking other typical amenities. In the 1910s, the American Land Company noted the 

“suitable restrictions” when selling properties at Cabin John Park.”* The advertisements noted the 

community’s access to the District of Columbia, health benefits, the importance of home ownership, and 

offered the first 100 properties at auction to the highest bidder but only to “white people.” ** The 

company added that all “pains will be taken to prevent undesirable parties from securing home sites on 

this property (Figures 15-17).”** Covenants were used here and in other affordable neighborhoods to 

restrict people of color from purchasing homes when the price of real estate did not prevent ownership. 

Developers implemented these covenants in efforts to convince prospective white prospective 

homeowners to purchase properties in the suburbs and in effect connecting sustained property values 

with racial homogeneity. 

22 “Cabin John Park,” Washington Herald, April 25, 1915, Chronicling America. 

3 Ibid. 

*4 Ibid. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “C) 16 



pea Farmer {BRADLEY HILLS| === 
The Future Home of Society. A _ electric railway, of the mor modem 

type now under construction, and completely 
financed will skirt the Western border of 

+ RAISE CHICKENS ; 

PRODUCE FOR THE TABLE my oa eal tno ei ante EDGEWOOD 
i AT affording access from all parts of 

a Cabin John Park Make Your Selection Now | __ sscroys xisraicren 
. . RESIDENTIAL PARK 

--- While Farm-land Prices = to the heart of the city by the most direct 

The Sedative for Tired ---Obtain in This Choice Section \ convenient route. 
Nerves is Little Farms WHETHER you deste to purchase BRADLEY HILLS land for a home ste or for invest-/ 

. —_———— ment, the most advantageous time is RIGHT NOW. Its character, location, sur- 
pp BLN aera Ey Po fem os dick aren Toundings spell speedy development, while the completion of improvements oF) F 

area doa't need greatly enhanced values. V5 | 
BRADLEY HILLS ALREADY HAS LS Ee es, : 

miles of macadam roads. Illuminating power of Bradley Hills. These vary in size from / ¢ | 
—both gas and electricity—has been intro- ONE to TEN ACRES, and offer highly at 7 
duced. A water supply is being provided, uae locations for the erection of Caeed J 
likewise scientific drainage. = soley life can be ENJOYE! ah ; ‘ 

THE TROLLEY LINE, which will MarAWelckccivee facies eater 7 ae a, — 
bring this subdivision within THIRTY Bradley Hills. XUTO! OBILES TO CON. / bY 

MINUTES OF TOWN, is contracted for, VEY YOU there—agents to furnish every 
and will be in actual operation at no great dis- detail. Or, if you prefer, consult your own J 
tant date. broker. 

An ACRE of On the car line and MAIN BOULEVARD OF Development 
BRADLEY HILLS will be Sat rey _— 1 Under the 

| Ground Suburb Beautiful.” Herein are poate tet 
for What You LOTS at prices which will enable oa of ODER. 

ATE MEANS to locate close to the finest suburban Firm of ap ; EDGEW OOD. 
n ne fe fat, of memories Would residential section. WENDEL ° ‘ = 

oa J irts it for oc Le ” oul ; 

hae ving some ng and strange plce po year. Real home memories are founded on the perma. | ra Se but hey ape REASONABLD ad 2aEers me “Don’t Buy a Promise—Buy a Reality” 

= protector of ALL HOLDERS. National City Real Estate Corporation 
April 29, 30 and May 1 

ts df 

Owner of Edgewood 

ee Real Estate Trust Co, Co. al ery 
sz uate epeten t pee || BROKER «1414 F Street N.W. Phone Moin dest. = Fayyaue PS Kemvogn, 2612 ad 42 

Figures 15- 17: “Advertisements yore Cabin John Park, Bradley Hills and Edgewood. 

Source: “Be A Little Farmer,” Evening Star, April 28, 1915, Newspapers.com; “Bradley Hills: The Future of Home Society,” Evening 

Star, May 12, 1912, Newspapers.com; “Edgewood,” Washington Post, December 15, 1912, Newspapers.com. 

Two national events further increased the propagation of racial restrictive covenants. In 1917, the 

Supreme Court decision in Buchanan v. Warley prohibited racial municipal zoning. The cities of 

Baltimore, Richmond, Winston-Salem, Atlanta, New Orleans, and Louisville (among others) had all 

enacted zoning ordinances that required separate residential areas for its Black and white residents. 

Developers and owners, however, recognized that agreements between two private parties permitted 

by restrictive covenants faced less judicial scrutiny than wholesale government-enacted segregation. At 

this same time, the Great Migration led to thousands of Black southerners fleeing violence and poor 

living conditions to move to northern cities. By the 1910s, Washington, D.C. was a cultural and financial 

center for Black Americans with 110,000 residents, which accounted for approximately 25% of the city’s 

population. Many Black Washingtonians had government jobs as clerks and other bureaucratic 

positions, and there was a small upper-class community of lawyers, businessmen, and professors. Racial 

tensions were elevated as housing and employment opportunities were limited, competition increased, 

and newspapers stoked fear with sensationalized and false stories of violence against white women by 

Black men. In addition, Black soldiers returning from World War | had experienced better treatment 

overseas and pushed back against unfair policies.” 

In 1919, the “Red Summer” marked a pattern of white-on-Black violence that occurred throughout the 

country. In July, a four-day race war erupted in Washington, D.C. that led to violence where Black 

residents resisted and retaliated. Historian Cameron McWhirter in Red Summer: The Summer of 1919 

and the Awakening of Black America estimated that at least seven people were killed—four Black and 

25 Cameron McWhirter, Red Summer: The Summer of 1919 and the Awakening of Black America (New York: Henry 

Holt and Company, 2011), 96-98. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation Repor 17



three white residents, and hundreds of people were injured (an unknown number later died).7° Many 

white Americans emerged from the violence that summer with the opinion that the nation needed more 

segregation.2” McWhirter quoted the Brooklyn Daily Eagle correspondent who published an article 

“Race War in Washington Shows Black and White Equality Not Practical.” Southern newspapers 

further supported segregationist policies with headlines, “Race Segregation A Law of Nature,” which 

stated: 

Washington race riots bring again to the eternal truth that the whites and negroes are 

naturally segregated races and that whenever and wherever the black shows the least 

disposition to break over that line a stern Caucasian arm thrusts him back. There can be 

no peace between the races where the line of segregation is not hewed to.” 

As these events unfolded, white real estate developers and residents of northern and western cities 

moved to isolate the Black population by all means available including racial steering by realtors and 

racial restrictive covenants. In 1924, the National Association of Real Estate Boards endorsed the use of 

such practices in its Code of Ethics. Article 34 stated: 

A Relator should never be instrumental in introducing into a neighborhood a character of 

property or occupancy, members of any race or nationality, or any individuals whose 

presence will clearly be detrimental to property values in that neighborhood.*° 

In 1926, the Supreme Court further institutionalized the use of racial restrictive covenants when it 

rejected a challenge to racial restrictive covenants in the case Corrigan v. Buckley. The case involved the 

sale of a property with a racial restrictive covenant in Washington, D.C. A white homeowner sued to 

block the sale of the property as it violated the covenant. The court decided that the Fifth and 

Fourteenth Amendments limited the actions of only the government and not private parties, and that 

the Thirteenth Amendment didn’t apply to the sale of real estate. The Court left open the question of 

whether judicial enforcement of racial restrictive covenants violated the constitution, but lower courts 

cited Corrigan v. Buckley as precedent for such action.** 

Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1920-1933 

Montgomery County experienced the start of its rapid population growth in the 1920s. The overall 

population increased from 34,921 in 1920 to 49,206 (a 41% increase) in 1930. The white population 

increased from 26,633 to 40,918 (a 54% increase). The Black population, however, decreased from 8,282 

6 Ibid, 96-113. 

27 Ibid, 111. 

28 C.C. Brainerd, “Race War in Washington Shows Black and White Equality Not Practical,” Brooklyn Daily Eagle, 

July 27, 1919, Newspapers.com. 

*9“Race Segregation a Law of Nature,” Se/ma Journal, July 24, 1919, Newspapers.com. 

30 National Association of Real Estate Boards, “Code of Ethics,” June 6, 1924, http://www.nar.realtor (accessed 

October 31, 2022). 

31 Paul Finkman, ed., Encyclopedia of American Civil Liberties, Vol. 1 (New York: Routledge, 2006), 369. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “C) 18 



to 8,266 residents.” The restrictive covenants channeled this racial population growth as their use 

continued to spread in the Downcounty Planning Area. 

f Bethesda , 2 S 

Ke see "% 1920-1933 
SS Gree! * ¥ an r 

aban £ J a Sit 3 “ BS ~ = i ys 

John gn ae GN ue S ~~ re ‘ / E 

> | Socom NA Ge nN SIN ae a aOR ] Ny 8 rs VL x; sage 
fi * bo, 

\ Vest / 
f \ — / id Re my % 

abin J 8 ier « nee % f Adelphi 

John 2 Mi A ie “> " z ra 
VU tr 5 pias} 

{ “ 2 SilversSpring P. § x nie 

; a Vx 4 & ¥ &. 4 In a 

| es , ; , 
; . Mis No : % 

& z 

J = BethBs ds $ A 3 } 

— 2 \ Pr 3 ’ \N 

F a“ ~ Caby u i 4s { 4 . he Ma Park ‘ 

ip si gt as Z eg MK A / 
| 5 wa Day” f Sh 

poet Scan | AX Rcoegbeel aS Phw u > tut Wy mast : SY Dia 

2 ee saath \ P 34: jan Sth a (eure ~ 
‘ ~ Yo? Mor J Chitlum ae 

« te % ~ 4 ¥ \ Ra-NW : 

N x : ven 
\ A GW : 2 caictttars 

P Rer Be : 91, 47% ry \ 4 of Wy 3 ye 101, 53% 
re \ \ Dok i Sf r 

oe , >» r 4 % 
Vey ~~ "e, i oS fae % , , : 

McLean Nye Pe Universit ‘ % : idier 
nart e tere aim] ™ Racial Covenants _ @ No Racial Covenants 

C = hor 

Figure 18: Racial covenants associated with plats recorded in the Downcounty Planning Area (1920-1933). 

Between 1920 and 1933, properties associated with 101 of the 192 recorded plats (53%) included racial 

restrictive covenants (Figure 18). Major subdivisions included: Battery Park, Blair, North Woodside, E. 

Brooke Lee’s Addition to Silver Spring, James H. Cissel’s Addition to Silver Spring, Seven Oaks, Blair- 

Takoma, Brookmont, Woodside Park, Chevy Chase (Section 8), Indian Spring Park, Kenwood, Sligo Park 

Hills, Westmoreland Hills, and North Woodside. Advertisements for these communities did not openly 

announce housing opportunities for only white residents. Instead, the developers included implicit 

language such as “Permanent restrictions will advance values rapidly” at Seven Oaks Manor, “Wise 

restrictions assure a congenial home-owning community” at Woodside Park, “There will be necessary 

restrictions ... because they preserve and conserve the interests of the people who live therein” and 

“your neighbor will be the best class of people only” at Battery Park.*? The underlying context of this 

language all suggested the use of racial restriction covenants and other discriminatory housing practices. 

During this period, the use of racial restrictive covenants in the Downcounty Planning Area spread to 

other racial and ethnic marginalized communities in addition to Black residents. In 1932, Caroline Clark 

included covenants in her section of Branwill Park (adjacent to Seven Oaks) restricting the sale of 

property to individuals with “Asiatic, African, or Negro blood, lineage, or extraction.” *4 In 1933, the 

32 United States Department of Commerce, Fifteenth Census of the United States: 1930 Population Volume III 

(Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1932), 1052. 

33 Seven Oaks Manor, Evening Star, September 30, 1923, Newsbank; “Woodside Park,” Evening Star, August 8, 

1925, Newsbank; “Battery Park,” Washington Herald, November 4, 1922, Newspapers.com. 

34 Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Caroline V. Clark to Edward Peter, Albert Bouic, Mary Almoney, and Florence 

J. Brunett,” April 8, 1932, Liber 538, Folio 116. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation =“) 19



Lougborough Development Corporation discriminated against people of Jewish descent. The land 

records noted: 

No part of the land hereby conveyed shall ever be used, or occupied by, or sold, demised, 

transferred, conveyed unto, or in trust for, leased, or rented, or given to negroes, or any 

person, or persons, of negro blood or extraction, or to any person of the Semitic Race, 

blood, or origin, which racial description shall be deemed to include Armenians, Jews, 

Hebrews, Persians, Syrians, Greeks, and Turks... 

The term “Semitic races” appeared in almost all the conveyances associated with properties that 

discriminated against people of Jewish descent. While the racial description of “Semitic” included 

various groups, the developers likely intended to discriminate primarily against Jewish residents. For 

example, while property owners in other parts of the country such as Fresno, California, purposefully 

discriminated against Armenians, those restrictions coincided with the en masse immigration of 

Armenians to Fresno. In Montgomery County, there is no evidence of such immigration of these racial 

and ethnic groups to the County. 

Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1934-1948 

The next period represents the creation of the Federal Housing Administration in 1934 to the Supreme 

Court’s ruling in Shelley v. Kraemer in 1948 that found judicial enforcement of racial restrictive 

covenants violated the 14*° Amendment. As discussed earlier, the policies and practices of the FHA bore 

greater responsibility than the HOLC for federal-sponsored redlining that limited the ability of Black 

homeowners to accumulate wealth through housing. Agency officials helped codify and expand 

practices of housing segregation in the country. During this period, Montgomery County’s population 

grew from the creation of the New Deal, expansion of the Federal government, and further 

suburbanization. The overall population increased from 49,206 in 1930 to 83,912 in 1940 (an increase of 

70.5%). The Black population, however, had minimal growth from 8,266 to 8,889 residents (an increase 

of 7.5%).?” 

Similar rapid population growth occurred in the subsequent decade. Between 1940 and 1950, the 

overall population increased from 83,912 to 164,401 (an increase of 96%). While the Black population 

decreased with respect to its percent of the overall County, the number of Black residents increased 

from 8,889 to 10,330 (an increase of 16%).The Black community in Takoma Park, however, experienced 

growth equal to the rate of the white population in this period. The Black population expanded from 337 

35> Montgomery County Circuit Court, “Loughborough Development Corporation Deceleration of Covenants,” 

March 27, 1933, Liber 547, Folio 139. 

36 Armen Don Minasian, Settlement Patterns of Armenians in Fresno, California, Thesis submitted at San Frenando 

Valley State College (January 1972): 87-92. 

37 United States Department of Commerce, Sixteenth Census of the United States: 1940 Population, Vol. II, 

Characteristics of the Population (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1943), 541. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation ©) 20



to 473 residents (an increase of 40%)and the white population increased from 8,598 to 12,064 residents 

(an increase of 40%). .78 

Between 1934 and 1948, however, properties associated with 53% of the plats recorded (548 out of 

1,029) included racial restrictive covenants (Figure 19).*? There appears to be no extensive increase or 

decrease in the use of racial restrictive covenants based on the selective sampling. As the Downcounty 

Planning Area continued to be built out there was an increase in the number of resubdivisions. As a 

result, properties associated with 130 of the 548 record plats (25%) with racial restrictive covenants 

were “subject to covenants of record.” This meant that previous land conveyances had included 

covenants that carried forward with the land. 

wp [ Sere 5 aS 
a Py : Rock f ce $ nc 1934- 1948 

St: - > : Creek z a _— 

ae 2 SJ Ses hate Sakae 7 = 
Johin a ee 4 os Vf 8 

svu ——— aN Lm PTR Ste Stet eal i Z Lock 
7. $ > pe y, ry Le \ Branch SVt eZ 

/f ; | ( L 7} NL 5 

f z é f \ ee eee Q eo oF % 5 

abin rd Walter 3 Ss "ps Adelphi 

John 3 Ay i a : \ 43 

vu 5 - : os) 

{ " 3 iivenSpning r % y/' ues 

\ eS =, : \ n cy sof 

© 

| A 7 Y ; WA 

y Bethesda. 3 aw * — | } 

a“ ie Cate, 5 Takoma R.ark (ea), 

2 : 3 
[ : ey y | { \ S> 

Clara'g ; ma: y ? eee (2 5 oY 

is > by Pork f . : he W 

— wo “ P I 4 f ee! 7 Pte 

~—s a, 4 N y Héurich 

oe S isor 
Langley wagahngton \ é y 2 ae 

atk ~ i - best =, : = ; te 

et 7 oa): 2 

ae PN. 5s = ninin's| 481, 47% 
obi \ ;” aes) E g 5 548, 53% 
ra \ de 

Ong 2 @ , % Maris 

"ey ba 6, 4 - % : y 
r C oe mencan | 2, < 

“clean ine JS, mniversit % a sok] ™ RacialCovenants ™ No Racial Covenant 
ja % > 

Figure 19: Racial covenants associated with plats recorded in the Downcounty Planning Area (1934-1948). 

The number of racial restrictive covenants targeting Jewish residents increased dramatically in this 

period (Figure 20). This trend corresponds with anti-immigrant and anti-Jewish rhetoric spreading across 

America and the start of the burgeoning Jewish community in Montgomery County. For example, in 

1938, the Montgomery County Sentinel ran an article by William Bruckart, Western Newspaper Union, 

titled “Danger of Sewish Problem for United States in German ‘Purge’.” The subheading read: 

“Resentment of American People Aroused by Hitler’s Harshness; Opening of Gates to Refugees Might 

Introduce Disturbing Influence.” *° Subdivisions that included such covenants included Bannockburn 

Heights, Bradley Woods, Green Acres, Locust Hill Estates, Ridgewood Village, Sixteenth Street Village, 

38 United States Department of Commerce, Report of the Seventeenth Decennial Census of the United States: 

Census Population: 1950, Vol. Il, Characteristics of the Population, Part 20, Maryland (Washington, D.C.: 

Government Printing Office, 1952). 

39 Staff recorded properties associated with 30 recorded plats as possibly having covenants. 

40 William Bruckart, “Danger of ‘Jewish Problem for United States in German ‘Purge’,” Montgomery County 

Sentinel, December 1, 1938, Chronicling America. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"G) 21



Westgate, Westmoreland Hills, and Wood Acres. Most of these subdivisions are located on the western 
side of the Downcounty. 

@ Rock > 2 z Ps < Creek 
° S ne - able S SJ Wes 

Cie 7 John ein =>s . = s DA es Ni Epes / 
VU5 -—— . aN by, [7 Pore St Stet eee } \ nee sees x, 4 $ . / 5 x ; e ei : om GON =f 

f bn : yf e x Fanaa a : : = a —_— = % > C G 
ES Iter : 3 3 fF Adelphi at J Nat | 

ié Joh a < Miltary Med 
= By \ af { 

2 SilversSpring 7 % , t 
a , ) > / \ 

Z , » , - Y 25 t : No % . y ‘ s Bethesda BS 4 a i } “4 - 5 eet AN 7 * E 2 g z A - *. Takoma Park feb) 7 
y Vat OT Ney, 

c . 
é 

/ John % < Fj fi ~ . / 
‘ - 4 © ~ Walls 

; % & 
t > Rock Medical ; 

| 12f8°B a Ns Pk mana’ > t eect a, a y / 
M = 7S Park oc — PSE 

+ R f _ — +e, 
y ' wi » Chillum ab 

? si 
f * 

: Part an ngton * yrs y i na \ 
a Mi Rd-N 

Park 
df = 

5 
? 4 XN " f 

Ny x 
\ . 9 ~ = Fort Langte : 

Tote ote \ “i Park 
Dalecartis 2 5 j rep c ¥"Mag,. \ 2 Reser a anN SINW St % j ; = one - L od 2 , 

Vic NN %o a e $ s 5 layle N 
2 American >) Me McLean % % ersity —Y & % - ie: he ; 4, % Avani Eorstst Nf ‘ ae % 

og a s 

Oo! 7 < » Home = Mo nr NE pe 

Figure 20: Racial restrictive covenants against Jewish residents in the Downcounty Planning Area. 

In 1947, five of fifty-two households of the Bannockburn Heights community in Bethesda filed a lawsuit 
in the Montgomery County Circuit Court (Rockville) to force Lucille Tushin, a Christian, to evict Aaron 
Tushin, her Jewish husband, from their jointly owned family home on Wilson Lane. The suit claimed 
“irreparable damage” caused by his occupancy in violation of the restrictive covenant. The complaint 
stated: 

That the wife of the defendant, the said Lucille Dewing Tushin, who, the plaintiffs are 
informed, is not of the Semitic race...continues to permit the said defendant Aaron Tushin 
to occupy the said premises, in violation of the aforesaid covenant...” Therefore, the 
complaint asks the court: “That the defendant Lucille Dewing Tushin by mandatory 
injunction be restrained from permitting said defendant Aaron Tushin from occupying 
said premises.” “+ 

The Tushins’ attorney, Alfred Noyes, in a statement added: 

“1 Jonathan Stout, “Defeat of Anti-Semitism in Bethesda,” The New Leader 30, no. 38 (September 20, 1947): 3, 
http://www.archive.org. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation "@) 22 



| suggest that the plaintiffs have borrowed a page from the Nazi Nuremberg laws. But 

even the plaintiff did not have the temerity to ask the court to dispossess the three 

children of the marriage. ** 

The five households who filed suit were Mr. and Mrs. William M. Benn (Selkirk Avenue), Mr. and Mrs. 

Paul B. Kern (Elgin Lane), Mr. and Mrs. John W. Senour (Selkirk Drive), Mr. and Mrs. J. Otis Garber 

(Braeburn Parkway), and Mrs. Mary L. Rawlings. Garber, a government official and Director of the Field 

Service of the Bureau of the Budget, lead the plaintiffs. All the plaintiffs, who were not immediate 

neighbors of the Tushins, were represented by attorney James M. Pugh.” 

The case gained immediate national attention and the Tushin family received support from the Anti- 

Defamation League of B’Nai B’rith. The organization stated: 

[This suit is one of the] most shocking examples of un-American bigotry ever perpetuated 

in the shadow of the nation’s capitol. The only damage to the plaintiffs by the presence 

of the Tushins is to their puerile snobbery. There is one wholesome and encouraging 

aspect. The immediate neighbors of the Tushins, members of the Bannockburn Heights 

Citizens’ [Association] were asked by the plaintiffs to vote authorizations to oust the 

Tushins. The overwhelming majority of the members was outraged by the proposal and 

turned it down cold. 

Less than a week after the case became public the plaintiffs withdrew their petition of a breach of a 

covenant due to overwhelming negative publicity and public pressure. The following month, Justice 

Meier Steinbrink, national chairman of the Anti-Defamation League, launched an intensive nationwide 

effort against restrictive racial covenants. He credited the Tushin case with sparking the movement by 

the organization.* 

In an off-the-record interview, one of the neighbors stated: 

My husband and | were looking for a suitable house for us and our children for many 

months without success. Then we found this house in Bannockburn Heights and it was 

just what we wanted. When we sat down to sign the contract, we discovered for the first 

42 Anti-Defamation League, “Seek to Evict Jewish Husband; Suit Dropped,” Anti-Defamation League Bulletin 4 

(October 1947): 5-7, http://www.archive.og. 

43 Jonathan Stout, “Defeat of Anti-Semitism in Bethesda,” The New Leader 30, no. 38 (September 20, 1947): 3, 

http://www.archive.org. 

44 “B’ Nai B’rith to Fight Real Estate Barriers As Tushin Suit Result,” Evening Star, October 6, 1947, Newsbank; 

“Anti-Race Discrimination Program Opens,” Independent (Long Beach, CA), October 7, 1947, Newspapers.com; 

“Neighbors Sue to Force Jew From His Home,” The St. Louis Star and Times, September 13, 1947, Newspapers.com; 

“Bannockburn Heights Group Halts Suit to Test Contract Clause,” Evening Star, September 16, 1947, Newsbank; 

“Attempt to Oust Family on Property Covenant Denounced as Bigoty,” Evening Star, September 13, 1947, 

Newsbank; “Suit Seeks to Fore Couple from Home in Restricted Area,” Evening Star, September 12, 1947, 

Newspaper.com. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"“C) 23 



time that there was a covenant against Jews. This was contrary to everything my husband 

and | were brought up to believe. We know how mean bigotry is. But because we had so 

much bad luck in looking for a house, we finally decided to sign, thinking that the whole 

issue would be academic and we could still enjoy our many Jewish friends. But now it has 

become real and I’m ashamed and humiliated.” 

The W.C & A.N. Miller Company who subdivided Sumner (located south of River Road in Bethesda) was a 

well-documented and notorious practitioner of racial restrictive covenants against Black and Jewish 

residents. Even after the Supreme Court found judicial enforcement of the practice unconstitutional in 

1948, the developers controlled the racial make-up of the community in Washington, D.C. by requiring 

the developer to be the exclusive agent for reselling the property or by requiring their approval upon 

resale.*° 

Racial restrictive covenants against Asians remained limited in Montgomery County. Properties 

associated with 13 record plats included such covenants (Figure 21). The subdivisions included Bradley 

Woods, Green Acres, and Highland Hills. The minimal restrictions against Asian residents likely occurred 

due to their small population in the County rather than broad acceptance. In 1950, the United States 

Federal Census recorded 78 Chinese and 66 Japanese residents in Montgomery County. 

Bethesda 6 Fad % 

ro Roc s % 
SErvek < nD ————. 

i at a ms — i 
0" er fee a p 

S Se se - \ a i ee 4 i ‘ Northe > 

3 nN / ; NY Branch SVU ; 
< ‘ 7M = 

[ ; \ ~~: Ye << F 
s < 2 2 £ 

<J iL oO * a” 2 © 

: a —e = 2 a = 
° Walter : = x fF Adely Sabin 9 Reed’Nat! vf; 

John 2 = Military Med ¢ 3 sua > = K " f 

= SilvermSpring Ss % rs 
' 4 i. -, " 4 / 

: ‘ 4 | NS; : if 

* » A XN ; s \ 
> i ne 
< 

Vi Bethesda ~ f. * RS / 
o - 

— s = ey bee . 
a Bar Takoma Park 

* 
Jot 3 3 : | 

7; t E = fz = ‘ 

Y. 
f Of % f c p Reed Army \ _ < 

: M4 7 t A <) “Rock Medal ‘s y 

| 1 af2'Bartonspy hah , Creek —_ = 
r wy > 1 = 

; M yf Park ae tN " Y 

~—T . Riu ‘ « Rock \ 7 , 

fr~ 4, Sane tae Chillum 4 
~ ~* Mortison St NV; Course : Fe 

Langley L 7 t tN 
Oaks \ £ yA Military-Rd-NW ; ; 
Park Cars ¥ > £ 

‘a on Zz 

N P73 My. s . fr 

N = r, ‘ 
. ia = yy 

, Li Fort 0, 
Langley \ A © = < F tter 7 
Fork Park 5 ‘i Park be 

\ Date — : 

N Uso, & $ Reservas &. 

on 2? c Tayl N 7. °° , a Fa ¥ 

L , EN ey cA American, ] } M aMt == 
clean % >, tniibéeis =) -y S 

a Fe N72 % id ra and 
—, toy, % > . Aimen's 

5 1mi 2s “ < an Hone S Mont NEL » =a\ed 

Figure 21: Racial restrictive covenants against Asian American residents in the Downcounty Planning Area. 

8 United States Commission on Civil Rights, Housing in Washington, hearings held in Washington, D.C., April 12-13, 

1962 (Washington D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1962), 204. 

“6 United States Commission on Civil Rights, Civil Rights U.S.A.: Housing in Washington, D.C. (Washington, D.C.: 
Government Printing Office, 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation ©) 24



Racial Restrictive Covenants and De Facto Segregation in Montgomery County: 1949- 

1968 

The Supreme Court’s decision in Shelley v. Kraemer (1948) found racial restrictive covenants to be 

unenforceable by judicial enforcement as they violated the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth 

Amendment. Private citizens, however, were still permitted to include these covenants in land records. 

De facto segregation and social enforcement sustained their effectiveness. Initial reaction to the 

Supreme Court case varied. An editorial in the Washington Post stated, “No one need either hope or 

fear...that the Supreme Court’s action will change the situation quickly. The Ghetto wall is merely 

breached, not demolished.”*” Others recognized the long-term damage created by these covenants. An 

editorial in the Chicago Defender stated: 

These covenants have been responsible for more human misery, more crime, more 

disease and violence than any other factor in our society. They have been used to build 

the biggest ghettoes in history. They have been used to pit race against race and to 

intensify racial and religious prejudices in every quarter.”® 

The FHA did not amend administrative rules to deny insurance to properties with racial covenants until 

December 12, 1949 (with an effective date of February 15, 1950). These covenants continued to 

proliferate the language of segregation until the passing of the Fair Housing Act in 1968. The law 

prohibited discrimination in land transactions and made the use of such covenants illegal. 

The project team reviewed all the Downcounty Planning Area plats recorded between 1949 and 1952. 

Properties associated with 126 of the 416 (30%) record plats included racial restrictive covenants. 

However, properties associated with 50 of the 126 record plats with such covenants noted “subject to 

existing covenants” from previous land conveyances. Therefore, the number of new covenants dropped 

to approximately 76 of the 416 record plats (18%). Staff would expect the number of new racial 

covenants to continue to fall until they were outlawed in 1968. 

47 Clement E. Vose, Caucasians Only: The Supreme Court, the NAACP, and the Restrictive Covenant Cases (Los 

Angeles, CA: University of California Press, 1959): 212. 

48 Ibid, 213. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation "C) 25



Nomn at mis A Py 

ae . ES Z : Rs 1949-1952 

F May 5 - . SS sed i ~ 

meee WX: Za ath — / . 7-7---o— \ Nic Va POT Sts Sebo alpen / Pes na 

{ nN aft BY:  % jf 

7 2s: Gan a F Adelphi 

= = Mil Med é fj 

{ = Silver SF ring # 4g 3 Unis 

ae J : 
yj E: . Bethesda : fa : , } 

k — 5 5 £ g (3 \ 

SVE a 4 1 4 Di pe ark 

[ 7 % /; / 
2 i 

| . 1 ‘ : a F . . \ y 

™ Da Park . Y The t 
— — ~ aaa ee , R k Ny Si . Pri 

shington A a Sauter]: “wal . a 
Yeo “we roa NN & Wa Military-Rd-NW a wl | 

Bee] a, Nes)! ON , 1 eo 126, 30% 

\ , aes S 

seed \ : 4 = 

Dalecarlia 23 
M so, & \ $ Rene af nNe tN \ 5 290, 70% 

if: Se a % : 
McLean Cle oh Univer ity % * Mp, a, > 2 : mT @ Racial Covenant aN 

- ve t 

Figure 22: Racial covenants associated with plats recorded in the Downcounty Planning Area (1949-1952). 

The Shelley v. Kraemer decision appears to have minimal initial impact to the demographics of 

Montgomery County with respect to Black homeownership. The opening of additional housing 

opportunities for Black residents in the District of Columbia paired with white flight, however, 

contributed to another massive population increase in the suburbs. Between 1950 and 1960, 

Montgomery County increased from 164,401 to 340,928 residents. The white population increased from 

approximately 153,804 to 327,736 (an increase of 113%). The Black population grew but nowhere near 

the same rate. The Black population went from 10,330 to 11,527 residents (an increase of 11.6%). As a 

result, Black residents had fallen from 33% of the County’s population in 1900 to 3% in 1960. 

The framework and social order established by the racial covenants heavily influenced development 

patterns in the 1950s. The suburbs successfully barred Black settlement as many of the Black residents 

had lived in the County for generations. In addition, the Black community often lived in overcrowded 

conditions with far greater number of occupants per unit than white families. According to the Health 

and Welfare Council (Washington, D.C.), the degree of overcrowding of nonwhite residents was eight 

times more severe than the degree of overcrowding for white residents.°° 

The FHA policy simply prohibited the inclusion of the racial covenant in the deed records but remained 

silent on who a property owner sells or rents to. Therefore, voluntary discrimination remained in full 

force. The actions of the federal government and real estate developers, however, were strengthened 

by the decisions of individual community members, the hands-off approach of the local government, 

“9 United States Department of Commerce, Negro Population, By County 1960 and 1950 (Washington, D.C.: 

Government Printing Office, 1966), 27. 

°° United States Commission on Civil Rights, Housing in Washington, hearings held in Washington, D.C., April 12-13, 
1962 (Washington D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1962), 50. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"C) 26



and apathy of the general public. As stated by Reverend Charles N. Mason, Jr., past chairman of the 

Silver Spring Ministerial Association’s Social Action Committee: 

.. the problem that we feel [is] not being squarely faced by the people in the suburbs...is 

the general collusion among the whole community, all the agents of the community—not 

real estate agents, but the whole community, a collusion on the part of the whole 

community—not to face up to its responsibility in the maintaining of the segregated 

pattern of housing in our community.*? 

.. three representatives of the Montgomery County Real Estate Board [who addressed the 

Ministerial Association]...indicated that they merely reflected the pattern which was in 

effect in the community...and that, therefore, if this pattern is perpetuated, the 

responsibility lies upon the community. They withdrew from taking any responsibility at 

all. Then one of our men privately talked to a member...and got a private opinion of his 

that it is the policy never to sell, to negotiate this kind of transition, where a Negro buys 

into a white area, on the basis that this is introducing inconsistent or undesirable 

elements into a neighborhood and this would be professionally unethical.... At the same 

time, this person said that if here were asked publicly to say this he would never say it.°” 

Throughout the country, Black Americans and other religious and ethnic groups who purchased homes 

in previously covenanted areas experienced: 1) protests, threats, intimidation, vandalism, arson, and 

violence; 2) the withholding of financing from mortgage lenders or unfavorable terms; 3) real estate 

professionals unwilling show properties in all-white communities for fear of censure or boycotts; and 4) 

agreements between real estate professionals, lenders, and improvement associations to prohibit sales 

to people of color.°* Black residents of Montgomery County experienced many of the same issues but 

started to challenge the de facto segregation in suburban housing in the 1960s. 

Dr. James Roberts, physician and surgeon at Freedman’s Hospital and Clinical Instructor at Howard 

University, recalled his efforts to move to White Oak in the early 1960s. He noted denial by local banks 

to finance loans for the purchase of the property. Even though Perpetual Building Association (later 

known as Perpetual American Federal Savings and Loan Association) had provided financing for a 

number of his properties in the District of Columbia, it determined that financing the Montgomery 

County property would be “out of line.”°** Dr. Roberts persisted and acquired financing from North 

Carolina Mutual, an African American-owned, out-of-state provider.°? Furthermore, when the nearby 

>! United States Commission on Civil Rights, Hearings before the United States Commission on Civil Rights, June 10, 

1959 (Washington, D.C.: Conference with Federal Housing Officials, 1959), 93. 

>? United States Commission on Civil Rights, Housing in Washington, hearings held in Washington, D.C., April 12-13, 
1962 (Washington D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1962), 95-96. 

°3 B.T. McGraw and George B. Nesbitt, “Aftermath of Shelley versus Kraemer on Residential Restriction by Race,” 

Land Economics 29, no. 3 (1953): 284. 

54 United States Commission on Civil Rights, Housing in Washington, hearings held in Washington, D.C., April 12-13, 
1962 (Washington D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1962), 93-94. 

°° Ibid., 97. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation "@) 27



residents heard that a prospective Black resident was purchasing the property, members of the 

improvement (civic) association unsuccessfully attempted to purchase the property from under him. Dr. 

Roberts stated: 

The neighborhood was quite incensed at the whole thing. | got quite a number of nasty 

calls, and one woman said she couldn’t understand why a Negro would want to move into 

a white neighborhood and cause a lot of violence. | told her | didn’t expect violence, and 

| was moving in. The problem was that the neighborhood had quite a few stereotyped 

ideas about Negroes. | put forth all my effort to change those ideas. ... I’ve been there 

almost 2 years now, and a great change has occurred. Most of my neighbors can see now 

that |am a human being, and not a creature with two heads. Although a few don’t speak 

to me, most do.°° 

In Washington, D.C., the National Committee on Segregation in the Nation’s Capital issued a 

report that condemned the government and dominant real estate, commercial interests, and 

federation of civic association for the ongoing patterns of segregation. In the 1940s, only 200 out 

of 30,000 new units constructed in the District of Columbia were available for Black residents.°’ 

Mary (nee Betters) Williams, former President of the Montgomery County Branch of the NAACP, 

documented her family’s struggle to find housing in an all-white neighborhood near Veirs Mill (Figure 

23). Upon meeting with Adolph and Mary Williams in 1961, the real estate agent selling the property 

they desired to purchase quoted them a higher price than advertised and refused to accept a deposit. 

The owner of the agency later tried to deter the couple from purchasing the property and claimed his 

company would go out of businesses if they sold to African Americans and face potential expulsion from 

the Montgomery County Board of Realtors. In the end, the agency released the property owners from 

their contract with the firm to sell directly to the Williams family.°® A couple of weeks after moving into 

the home, the family experienced multiple acts of violence and intimidation: 

On July 3, | found a hangman’s noose on the windshield of my car. ... On July 4...we saw 

two police cars and several people standing outside of the house. ...In discussing the 

incident with a neighbor, we were told a large flaming cross had been placed against the 

wooden beam on the porch which would have set the roof on fire had a neighbor from 

next door not come over and knocked it away. A fire bomb was also found on the lawn. 

..One night recently when the girls were home alone they answered the NAACP phone to 

be told by an anonymous caller that a bomb had been placed under the house and that 

they should leave immediately. ... We have received four threatening letters.°? 

© |bid., 375-376. 

57 Wendell E. Pritchett, “A National Issue: Segregation in the District of Columbia and the Civil Rights Movement at 
Mid-Century Civil Rights Movement at Mid-Century,” Georgetown Law Journal 93 (2005): 1328. 

°8 United States Commission on Civil Rights, Hearings before the United States Commission on Civil Rights 

(Washington, D.C.: Conference with Federal Housing Officials, 1959), 104-105. 

>? Ibid. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"“@) 28



Négro Teacher in Forefront 
Of Montgomery Racial Row 

D result of a racial incident at By ANA BULLEN 

A quiet, 30-year-old school tly the scene of picketing 
teacher has plunged into the against discrimination. 
battle against racial discrimi- after the restaurant 
nation in Montgomery County. year near her 

She is Mrs. Mary Y. Williams, — Lenmor avenue. 
teacher at Arcola Elementary Mrs. Williams took 
ee eee there for a snack 

ehapter tional Asso- wouldn't serve us and 
ctation for the Advancement ‘ say why,” she 
ef Colored People. Williams kept ask- 

In her own family, Mrs. Wil- Pinally, an employe said, 

liams counts @ number of vic- e don't serve colored people.” 
tories in the desegregation fight girl cried.” 
She says her husband is the 

aes 6 tine nor tm gare &. & ae told her story an all-white elementary school. pext meeting of the local 

Children Her Reason two mon 
rier big enncern, however elected president 

main reason 
came active in the local NAACP Negroes in Mont- 
are her two children, both stu-  - County have made gains 
dents at formerly all-white! are pressing for more. 
West Rockville Elementary cing | After protests by the NAACP 
School. ; a Woodward & Lothrop store 
'“T want to set them an ex- 1 hope they will grow UP in the county ended segrega- 
ample. I don’t want my chil- the same idea I have of tion at its tea room. In keep- 
dren to grow up with a feeling, pting second-class Cit-\ing with the pattern at Glen 
of inferiority. They won't have |!zenship,” she said. \Echo amusement park and 
that feeling if they can see! Mrs. Williams came to the other places where segregation 
that by fighting and working fore in the local NAACP as the presently is being challenged, 3 : 4 g 

Figure 23: Mary Y. Williams (now Mary Y. Betters), was President of the Local Chapter of the NAACP in the late 1950s. 
Source: Evening Star. 

While Dr. Roberts and the Williams family succeeded in purchasing homes, most Black families failed to 
breach the wall of segregation in Montgomery County. Prospective Black residents fared no better in 

their search for rental housing in Montgomery County. Apartment 

“not integrated” in 1966.°° The Congressman denounced the actio 

House floor: 

Young Americans of all races can and do die together in Vietnam. Why must some of their elders 

make it so difficult for them to live together in America?® 

Morris Milgram, a pioneer national housing advocate who dedicated his career to building and 
promoting integrated housing across the country, established the only integrated apartment complex 

near downtown Silver Spring. In 1962, Angier Biddle Duke, protocol chief for President John F. Kennedy, 

contacted Milgram about purchasing apartment complexes in the Washington, D.C. region for nonwhite 

diplomats. Two years later, Modern Community Builders (Milgram’ 

Village and Rosemary Terrace apartments at 1901 East-West Highway. He changed the apartments 

°° “Negro Barred from Projects,” The Capital Times, March 23, 1966, Newspapers.com. 
°? “Negro Barred from Projects,” The Capital Times, March 23, 1966, Newspapers.com. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"@) 

=
e
 

| 
( 
| 
1 
| 

managers and owners routinely 

denied persons of color housing. For example, three suburban apartment complexes barred Rufus H. 

Myers, a congressional aid for Congressman Andrew Jacobs, Jr. (Indiana), and his family since they were 

ns of the apartment owners from the 

Ss Company) purchased Rosemary



housing policy and rented to Black residents. By 1966, 34 Black families lived in the 415 apartment units. 

While Milgram’s progressive actions (for the period) predated any implementation of fair housing 

policies, the company unofficially utilized racial quotas or steering to appease white residents.” 

Civil Rights and Fair Housing activists, frustrated with the lack of progress with respect to apartment 

rentals, started the Action Coordinating Committee to End Segregation (in the Suburbs ACCESS) in 

February 1966. Initial members included Chairman J. Charles Jones, John Gibson, Roy Maurer, Al 

McSurely, Daniel Safran, Michael Tabor, and George Harris.© The group strived to raise awareness 

regarding discriminatory rental practices and reform training of apartment personnel, and demanded 

that developers publicly announce a policy of non-discrimination and include declarations of equal 

opportunities in their advertising.” 

In March 1966, ACCESS targeted large-scale developers with properties throughout the metropolitan 

region. The group picketed the Silver Spring office of Carl M. Freeman at 1400 Spring Street and at his 

Americana-branded apartments.® Freeman was one of the larger developers in the region and all his 

complexes in Maryland and Virginia refused African American tenants.°° While Freeman publicly 

supported open occupancy, he refused to take any action absent legislation. He argued that open 

occupancy required broad participation of all builders, owners, and mangers.°’ J. Charles Jones of 

ACCESS responded: 

We’re in the seat of democracy, literally surrounded by a noose of segregation. The closing off 

of great numbers of housing units to Negroes has resulted in a concentration of demand which 

hopelessly tries to exploit an inadequate supply. The result is that most Negroes are limited to 

less adequate housing at high cost. ACCESS is necessary to assure not only a public statement of 

intent to comply, but actual procedures. We want to see the rental lists, and be present when 

employees are told of the new policy. Mr. Freeman is not a racist. ... [His] fine words have no 

effect whatsoever on the plight of the Negro families who cannot get housing in his apartments. 

62 After the passage of fair housing policies, Rosemary Village still integrated at a faster rate than the surrounding 

region. In 1970, the property was: 59% white, 21% African American, 10% Hispanic, and 8% “international.” 

Milgram stated that the “international” category included Asians, Indians, and “non-Spanish Europeans.” EHT 

Traceries, “Rosemary Apartments, M: 36-62),” Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties Form (2021), Section 8; 

James Welsh, “Wanted: An Apartment in the Suburbs,” Evening Star, April 5, 1966, NewsBank; Paul W. Valentine, 

“Rosemary: Where Integration Works,” Washington Post, March 25, 1970, ProQuest. Joe Green, “Residents Differ 

Over Continued Success of Racially Mixed...,” Washington Post, October 13, 1974, ProQuest. 

63 Phillip Shandler, “New Civil Rights Group Warns on Apartments,” Evening Star, February 28, 1966, Newsbank. 
64 “Montgomery Apartment Faces Pickets,” The News, March 19, 1966, Newspapers.com. 

65 “Unit to Picket Apartments in D.C. Suburbs,” Evening Star, March 12, 1966, Newsbank; “200 Picket Apartments 

Rights Drive,” Evening Star, March 14, 1966, NewsBank. 

66 The number of African Americans living in Freeman’s complexes was minimal. Jones contended that the African 

Americans who gained access occurred by accident due to inexperienced staff, cases when the applicant’s race was 

unknown, or subleasing. “Equal Housing Picketing Set for Sunday,” Evening Star, March 24, 1966, NewsBank. 

&7 Carl M. Freeman, “Letter to Congressman Emanuel Celler,” in Civil Rights Hearings (Washington, D.C.: United 

States Government Printing Office, 1966), 1652-1653. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"C) 30



The net result of his statement is not much worse than if he had come out for a law enforcing 

segregation. ... Actions speak louder than words, and Mr. Freeman has not acted. 

In addition to Freeman’s offices and apartments, ACCESS picketed the house of Montgomery County 

developer Milton Polinger, builder Nick Basiliko’s Summit Hills apartment located immediately outside 

downtown Silver Spring, and the homes of other developers.®? To spotlight the non-violent protests, 

ACCESS led a 66-mile walk around the Capital Beltway starting on June 8, 1966. The four-day march 

started at the Georgia Avenue exit in Silver Spring (Figure 24).”° Individuals who supported ACCESS and 

open occupancy laws were met with eviction notices as well. In Montgomery County, Ronald M. 

Schwartz faced eviction from the Bradley Boulevard Apartments after he requested via letter that 

management consider all applications without regard to one’s race.” 

68 “Owner, Picket State Positions on Apartments,” Washington Post, March 27, 1966, Proquest. 

6° ACCESS Pickets March on 2d Apartment Building,” Washington Post, March 28, 1966, Proquest; “Better Housing 

for Negroes in Spotlight,” The Chicago Defender, June 25, 1966, ProQuest. 

70 “Wousing Group Enters 2"? Day of Beltway Hike,” Evening Star, June 9, 1966, NewsBank. 

71 “Reported Evicted after Open Occupancy Letter,” Afro-American, September 3, 1966, Proquest. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation Repor 31



Figure 24: Beltway March, June 8, 1966. Protestors demanded that affordable apartment owners in suburbs open rentals to 

African Americans. 

Source: Washington Star Collection, D.C. Public Library. 

Other organizations than ACCESS strived for similar goals but approached the issue in a different way. 

The Suburban Maryland Fair Housing (SMFH) group attempted to foster equality in housing, alter the 

attitude of white residents, and assist prospective Black residents with finding housing in segregated 

suburban areas. Between 1962 and 1967, SMFH successfully assisted 300 Black families in the County. 

This is far less than the 25,000 white families that moved to the suburbs during this period. The disparity 

demonstrated the continued adherence to racial segregation in Montgomery County.” 

In 1965, the SMFH contended that the majority of Montgomery County realtors and brokers refused to 

take Black clients.’? By the mid-1960s, the Washington Post reported that only 90 Black families had 

moved to Montgomery County’s all-white suburbs.“ The Barnes Family provides one example of the 

difficulties faced by African Americans attempting to move to the County. Dr. Roland Barnes served as a 

principal at Montgomery County’s Travilah Elementary School and Dr. Frances Barnes worked at the 

school system’s central office. Their home in Washington, D.C. required a 44-mile roundtrip commute. In 

1961, the couple attempted to purchase a house at Georgetown Hill (an all-white subdivision) and 

placed a deposit on the residence, but the development company returned their deposit and canceled 

the contract due to their race.” In 1965, the Barnes family lost their case when the Supreme Court 

refused to hear an appeal after years of litigation.’° The Barnes’ lawyer stated: 

..this case involves an incredible story of housing discrimination, within the very shadow 

of the nation’s capitol, supported and assisted by the federal courts. ’” 

Fair Housing Ordinance and Law: 1967-1968 

The Black community’s non-violent protests, actions taken by fair housing groups, and enactment of 

County Ordinance No. 4-120, Re: Elimination of Discrimination in Places of Public Accommodation, were 

important facets of Montgomery County’s Civil Rights history. These events all preceded the passage of 

Montgomery County’s Fair Housing Ordinance and Law. David Scull and Elizabeth Lee Scull, County 

political and civic leaders, allied with many of these groups and championed the passage of socially- 

conscious legislation in the County Council. On July 20, 1967, the County Council passed a 

7 Stanley D. Adams and Elizabeth B. Baldwin, “Local Fair Housing Legislation: Adoption, Enforcement, and Related 

Problems,” The Urban Lawyer, 2 no. 3 (Summer 1970): 282. 

73 Helen Dewar Washington, “Integration Stops at the Doorkey,” Washington Post, June 20, 1965, Proquest. 

74 Historian David Rotenstein researched and documented the experience of the Barnes family. David Rotenstein, 

“Love Lady and the Professor: A Pittsburg Civil Rights Story,” Western Pennsylvania History 103 no. 3 (Fall 2020): 

22-34. 

7> The developers contended that the dispute rested on contractual grounds and not race, but the court cases 

depicted racial motivations and discrimination on behalf of the developers. 

76 United States District Court, “Roland E. Barnes v. Abraham S. Sind and Israel Cohen,” 233 F. Supp. 572 (D. Md. 

1963), Casetext; United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit, “Roland E. Barnes, Appellant and Cross- 

Appelle v. Abraham S. Sind and Israel Cohen,” 347 F.2d 324 (4" Cir. 1965), Casetext. David Rotenstein, “Love Lady 

and the Professor: A Pittsburg Civil Rights Story,” Western Pennsylvania History 103 no. 3 (Fall 2020): 26. 

77 “Court Rejects Housing Case,” The Evening Sun, October 25, 1965, Newspapers.com. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"“@) 32



comprehensive Fair Housing Ordinance (No. 6-42). Over 100 organizations and individuals including the 

NAACP, SMFH, League of Women Voters, Citizen’s Committee for Human Relations, religious and civic 

groups, and agencies of the federal government supported its passage. 

The Fair Housing Ordinance was challenged in in the state courts and the Court of Appeals held the 

ordinance invalid due to a technicality.”? On August 15, 1968, the County Council enacted a second 

broad and comprehensive Fair Housing Law that omitted a controversial modified quota system of the 

previous ordinance.’? The new law covered all types and phases of housing transactions and 

supplemented the Fair Housing Provisions of the United States Civil Rights Act of 1968. The law was 

heralded as one of the strongest fair housing acts in the country.°? 

The passage of the Fair Housing Ordinance and Law, however, did not immediately ameliorate housing 

issues. For example, in 1974, Tom Hamilton, the director of the County’s Office of Landlord-Tenant 

Affairs, stated the following when talking about integrated housing: 

There are about 500 rental projects in Montgomery County and just four others—Good 

Acre apartments, the Long Branch apartments, and Quebec Terrace apartments, all in 

Silver Spring, and the Summit Hill apartments—less than a football field’s distance from 

the Rosemary complex, are as integrated as Rosemary. The rest of the county apartment 

housing is basically lily white. 

Case Study: Takoma Park 

Takoma Park provided an opportunity for a more detailed case study within the framework of the larger 

project. We started with Takoma Park due to its enumeration and sample size. The team examined the 

1900, 1920, and 1940 Censuses.® The 1950 United States Federal Census was released after our initial 

78 The Montgomery County Citizen League filed a suit to find the ordinance invalid. “Scull, Et Al. v. Montgomery 

Citizens League, Et Al.,” 249 MD 271 A.2d 92 (1968). 

”? The first ordinance assumed that a developer complied with the law if he or she sold or rented 10% of the units 

in the same single-family or multi-family residential area to people of the same race as the applicant within the 

previous three years. If so, the burden of proof shifted to the complainant. According to contemporaneous reports, 

the goal of the quota system was to deter white flight. “Fair Housing Ordinance Adopted: July 20, 1967; Effective: 

August 19, 1967,” in Fair Housing Act of 1967: Hearings before the Subcommittee on Housing and Urban Affairs 

(Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office, 1967), 501-506. 

80 Stanley D. Adams and Elizabeth B. Baldwin, “Local Fair Housing Legislation: Adoption, Enforcement, and Related 

Problems,” The Urban Lawyer, 2 no. 3 (Summer 1970): 283 and 307. 

81 In 1974, Rosemary apartments renters were 50% African American, 40% white, 5% Hispanic, and 5% Asian. Joe 

Green, “Residents Differ Over Continued Success of Racially Mixed...,” Washington Post, October 13, 1974, 

ProQuest. 

82 The team excluded the 1910 and 1930 United States Census due to the constrains of the project timeline. The 

project methodology, however, would have missed only residents who purchased and sold their property between 

1900 and 1920 or 1920 and 1940. With the limited movement and expansion of the Black population in the County 

at that time the number of residents missed would likely be minimal. Future exploration of the data could fill any 

missing information. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “C) 33



each Black household, staff documented 

analysis, but we included data from those records as well. For 

information such as the historic address, occupants, age, Sex, marital status, occupation, income, and 

ff then cross-referenced the names with 

whether they owned or rented their home. For the owners, sta 

the land records and: 

1) determined when the family acquired the property, 

der and terms of the loan; 
2) documented any mortgages on the property including the len 

3) determined the present-day address; and, 

A) evaluated whether the original house remained intact. 

nity in Takoma Park. The first known Black homeowners in 

The data visualized a thriving Black commu 

Takoma Park were Louis W. and Grace B. Thomas who worked as a caterer and nurse, respectively. Louis 

t 15 Montgomery Avenue from Annie E. Barbour in 1896 and closed four 

he 1900 United States Federal Census listed Thomas acquired the property a 

erty between 1896 and 1914. T 

k, but seven other families rented in nearby houses. separate loans on the prop 

them as the only Black homeowners in Takoma Par 

There were 40 Black residents at that time. 

The Black community had its period of greatest growth between 1900 and 1920. The population grew to 

203 residents (an increase of 407%). Thirteen families owned property and an additional 27 families 

ere dispersed throughout Takoma Park and only one racial restrictive 

rented. The Black-owned homes w 

covenant existed at Hill-Crest, subdivided in 1911 (Figure 25). 

Black Homeownership and Racial Covenants — 1920 
Black Homeownership and Racial Covenants — 1900 

fry Hampst é : : Su 2 vey 

é 1 Estat 
) x amr 

> 
4 

. ry 
Estat 

AY A, 
‘ ; 

ous PR; 
- \ 

ens) ye) oN 
= Shs 

|) Silver 
b bs oa 2 ts \ 

Spring Park are NS ' I = “| Silver” 
1 % 

: a Sligo y 1 Aampst Langle Spring Park Sree sap ' \ New 

g 3 Park * \ Gikd. ei Sligo 7 1 Ampshir Langl 

3 Hills ¢ 
1 

z Park * \ dens 

<0 < \ \ 
Hills © 9 $ 1 \ 

North = 
! 

er 

Tak =), Pe: \ . \ North 3 Si ¥ ! \ 

By 
I \ 

Tak =: \ 

Ny \ ; ~ 
¥ x . U \ 

rs . 
A ' 

be < -. \ Kil k ut in 
ws . : ¢ 1 , 

as Y S 7 x x -. 1 Kilmarock ~ 

Pa a a ag J . Pa tae ~ / 7 ee i eh) 7 

/ : , Mer , .. . Nas x 

mS) ~, 
1 ’ ‘N , 4 

v 1 

/ N y 
i 7 ee > 

iy 4 
F ys s 

! 

I . 

\ 
| ‘ 

1 

\ 
fit \ “sees 

’ 

‘ Ds 1 it 1 

\ie 4 Takoma Park 
Ca \% Takoma Park 

Cat 

te Carroll Manor y High A y Caroll M i High! 

\ 
£ a! 2 \ 

4 i 

‘ 
1 > 9 

! 

‘ 

. 
N f 

1 

eo | Ss 

yee 
iy . 

4 

X 
2 

x 4 
oe 

7 

> N 
aie 

‘ gy it Si 

\ ; nny Le : x ‘ g 

y 
XN 

y 

* ° , sitctey Ki bo if 

» 4 per 5 a: 4 

ie 
,; 7 

¥ : 
» a 5 Pot : y, 

rear 

x : 
™“ ‘ % 1 “gh wa )¢ 

ns z 
“ 4 , 

ONS easy / Chillum Manor i < . we ff ie ak 

Ae 4 
me ta ‘ 

3 4 34 , : z manty 3 gy 

i in j 
= tenes * te 4 Hampshire 

ot , St) Hampshire 
XN ¥ Knolls 

s Knalls 
é *O.g 

strictive covenants (shaded red) in Takoma Park in 1900 and 1920. 

Figure 25: Black homeownership (orange pins) and racial r 

n Takoma Park continued to increase. By 1940, there 
Between 1920 and 1940, Black homeownership | 

(34). The overall population expanded as 

ties associated with at were almost an equal number of homeowners (33) and renters 

). During this period, however, proper 
well to 304 residents (an increase of 49% 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"&) 
34



tive covenants, which channeled and concentrated the Black 

Figure 26). These became known as “the Hill” located at 

” near Colby Avenue off Sligo Creek Parkway, and an 

included the First Baptist Church of Takoma 

least 18 subdivisions included racial restric 

community’s growth into three distinct areas ( 

Oswego, Geneva, and Ritchie Avenues, “the Bottom 

unnamed, smaller community on Poplar Avenue. “The Hill” 

Park (1922) and the Takoma Park Rosenwald School (1928). 

Black Homeownership and Racial Covenants — 1950 

ment N & 2 

Seek tr Hamy > £ 

2 Fee: 

Black Homeownership and Racial Covenants — 1940 

7 4 5: ot New )2%6 Fi 

sf Me Seek Lr Hampshire, = 5 

7 J Estates = 

Langley 

Long Branch 
sur 

ie 

ak 2 
LT Bas gor Hy ‘MEN ED 

Lee 5 * cote 4 \ ah Yeo 

Kilmarock & s % me Karan ~My . . . i. " Kilmarock X ws 

O>:4 AL Figo, ee if te Scene Py 
; ‘3 Yi. : f reat NS ve 

4 ss 
4 - onbst ¢ 5 

&, > 1 yg ; 8 mane “ 

2 

= 
on ai 

we = 7m 

a 

© Chillum Manor , te br 3 
Chillum Manor 

> % ee = Van Buren St NW ~ a 
Sy 

m2 
reewanity 
Conter z tiny 

mez = inane = 
5 > PINES fe pe fy : $ 3 

= laisone *. Rr) Hampshire °° 3 —- 1 ay ae . ae 3 C/ Uarpane® zs a 

QP Sy Knals 5s 2 || 3 NS ea s ‘6 * 

Sy ¥ ‘ t < ey ze. > P stort > a =i 

an BinE*s Se 

‘ £ shenaar » bY 
= 

rk in 1920 and 1950. =
 

Ft
 

f
h
 

= 
# 

orange pins) and racial restrictive covenants (shaded red) in Takoma Pa 
Figure 26: Black homeownership ( 

While this project focused on racial restrictive covenants placed by real estate developers, builders, and 

owners who proactively incorporated covenants in subdivisions before the sale or occupation of the 

lots, an additional covenant type was documented in this area. Known as “reactive racial restrictive 

covenants,” these deed agreements occurred when private homeowners and community associations 

reactively coordinated to create new racial restrictive covenants in existing neighborhoods to ensure 

racial homogeneity. In 1947, 42 white owners in North Takoma Park on Ritchie Avenue independently 

agreed to such a Declaration of Covenants with the sole purpose of restricting the sale of property to 

Black homeowners. The boundary of the racial restrictive covenant abutted at least three Black-owned 

properties and occurred as Black homeownership at “the Hill” increased. 

The white community surrounding “the Bottom” neighborhood included racial restrictive covenants at 

the time of the initial sale of properties. The neighborhood association, however, took additional steps 

and other actions to further isolate the Black community. The Lincoln Park Civic Association, which was 

active in this area, prohibited Black residents from joining the association. The by-laws membership 

requirements stated: 

83 “The Bottom” consisted of low-lying areas on Cherry and Colby Avenues just off Sligo Creek Parkway and “the 

Hill” was an elevated portion of Takoma Park consisting of several small hills traversed by Richie, Geneva, and 

Oswego avenues. EHT Traceries, “Takoma Park African American Survey Report,” September 2022: 16. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation Repor 
35



Any adult of the Caucasian race who is the owner of real property, in, a resident of, or 

who has a community of interest in, the Lincoln Valley area shall be eligible for 

admission to, and continuation of, membership in the Association... 

The Black residents within this area formed their own civic association called the Colby Avenue Citizens 

Association, but the needs of the residents were more easily ignored by the City due to a lack of 

participation in the greater community’s affairs. 

In 1950, Black homeownership in Takoma Park increased to its highest levels. There were 56 owners 

compared to 27 renters. Approximately 67% of Black households owned their property, a dramatic 

increase from the 12.5% who owned land at the start of the century (Figure 27). The Black population 

continued to increase with 445 total residents, but the inclusion of racial restrictive covenants in the 

previous decade continued to isolate and concentrate the community. 

60 

| : / ) 
0 a LT 7 7 : 

1900 1920 1940 1950 

@ Black-Owned Houses @ Black-Rented Houses 

NR
 

So
 

Be
 

So
 

Figure 27: Black-occupied homes in Takoma Park between 1900 and 1950. 

Conclusion 

Racial discrimination was pervasive and broadly supported in Montgomery County until well into the 

mid-twentieth century. The history of this discrimination has been researched to the best of the team’s 

ability within the scope of this project by researching, mapping, and documenting this legacy—as it was 

recorded in the land records, promulgated in County real estate policies, and perpetuated by the actions 

of private individuals. The Black community recognized this discrimination for what it was, and 

advocated for equal treatment in access to housing, schools, lending, employment, and public 

accommodations. Mapping discriminatory housing practices and Black homeownership provides 

opportunities for education, further research, and potentially new forums to discuss the County’s 

history with greater precision, clarity, and understanding. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “C) 36



Further examination of demographic change in the most recent decades as part of the next phase of 

research can examine which racial disparities persist and which others are emergent in formerly racially 

exclusive areas. Combining these new data with the mapping research from this project may yield 

additional insights into remedies for these communities that are burdened with inequitable access to 

housing and other accommodations today. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation =") 37



Appendix: Project Deliverables 

1. Report (Methodology, Historic Context, and Conclusions) 

2. Databases 

Black Homeowners in the Downcounty Planning Area for the 1940 Census 

Black Homeowners in Takoma Park for the 1900, 1920, 1940, and 1950 Censuses 

Racial Restrictive Covenants in the Downcounty Planning Area 

Single-Family Housing Covenants in the Downcounty Planning Area 

p
a
o
 fF 

2 

Home Owners’ Loan Corporation (Mortgages) 

3. GIS Mapping Tool: Mapping Segregation Project 

a. Layers: 

i. Subdivisions with Racial Restrictive Covenants (Yes and Probable) 

e The layer is not a parcel-by-parcel analysis, but a selective sampling of 

properties within a record plat. 

ii. Subdivisions without Restrictive Covenants 

e The layer is not a parcel-by-parcel analysis, but a selective sampling of 

properties within a record plat. 

iil. Black Homeowners 

e 1900 Black Homeowners (Takoma Park) 

e 1920 Black Homeowners (Takoma Park) 

e 1940 Black Homeowners (Downcounty) 

e 1950 Black Homeowners (Takoma Park) 

iv. Historical Black Institutions (Churches, Cemeteries, Benevolent Societies, and 

Schools) 

v. HOLC Loans to Black Homeowners 

vi. Single-Family Dwelling Restrictive Covenants (All) 

e = This layer illustrates all record plats associated with single-family 

dwelling restrictive covenants. 

vil. Single-Family Dwelling Restrictive Covenants (All) 

e = This layer illustrates all record plats associated with single-family 

dwelling restrictive covenants that potentially remain in effect. 

vill. Federal Housing Administration 

e The layer illustrates two maps (1936-1937) that shows the residential 

sub-areas and their respective grade and the location of insured and 

outstanding FHA commitments. 

Working Draft of the Mapping Segregation “"C) 38



Item 6a 

THE MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS NOT COMPLETED BY DUE DATE 

BY DEPARTMENT AS OF JUNE 2023 

31 - 60 DAYS 61-90 DAYS 91 + DAYS DEPARTMENT TOTALS 

May-23 Jun-23 May-23 Jun-23 May-23 Jun-23 May-23 Jun-23 

CHAIRMAN, MONTGOMERY COUNTY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CHARIMAN, PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

OFFICE OF ClO 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE/CHAIRS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

DEPT. OF HUMAN RESOURCES & MGT. 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 

LEGAL DEPARTMENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 

PRINCE GEORGE'S PLANNING 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

PRINCE GEORGE'S PARKS & RECREATION 12 14 3 3 0 0 15 17 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PARKS 12 10 0 0 0 0 12 SS) 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY PLANNING 3 3 0 0 0 0 2 3 

**DEPARTMENT TOTAL BY DAYS LATE** 31 31 3 3 0 0 

COMMISSION-WIDE TOTAL 31 32 

**DEPARTMENTS HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED OF LATE EVALUATIONS. 



Late Annual Performance Evaluation Report 

Career Employees 

100% 

| 0% 

97% 98% 98% 99% 99% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

‘ 

@ Overdue 

*Data as of June 30, 2023 

Employee Count Evaluation Status | 

Department Compliant Overdue Total Employees 

Finance 

Human Resources and Met 

Legal 

MC Commissioner 

MC Parks 

MC Planning 

Merit System Board 

Office of ClO 

Office of Inspector General 

PGC Commissioner 

PGC Parks and Recreation 

PGC Planning 

Total Employees 



Item 6b 

Ww Office of the General Counsel 
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

Reply To 

Debra S. Borden 

July 5, 2023 General Counsel 
6611 Kenilworth Avenue, Suite 200 

Riverdale, Maryland 20737 

(301) 454-1670 @ (301) 454-1674 fax 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

FROM: Debra S. Borden 

General Counsel 

RE: Litigation Report for June 2023 — FY 2023 

Please find the attached litigation report we have prepared for your meeting scheduled on 
Wednesday, July 12, 2023. As always, please do not hesitate to call me in advance if you 

would like me to provide a substantive briefing on any of the cases reported. 

Table of Contents — June 2023 FY 2023 Report 

Composition of Pending Litigation... ccc cccccccccceessceeceecsseeeeeesstseeeeeeetsaaeeeeens Page 01 
Overview of Pending Litigation (Chart) «0.0.0.0... ccccccccccccssscccecesseeeesessseeeeeeetssaeeeeees Page 02 

Litigation Activity SUMMATLY ........0.. cece cece cccccessceeccecesseeeecesseeeeeessaeeeeeetssueeeeees Page 03 

Index of New YTD Cases (FY23) o.....cccccccccccccccceesssseceecesseeeecessseeeecesstseeeesesssaeeeeees Page 04 
Index of Resolved YTD Cases (FY23) .o......ccccccccccccccccccccssseeeecenseeeecenstseeeesessaaeeeens Page 05 

Disposition of FY23 Closed Cases Sorted by Department ..........000 eee eee Page 06 

Index of Reported Cases Sorted by Jurisdiction 2.00.00... ccccccccceesccceeeessseeeeeesseeeees Page 11 
Litigation Report Ordered by Court Jurisdiction .......0000.cccccccccccceceesseeeeeeesseeeeeens Page 12 



June 2023 

Composition of Pending Litigation 
(Sorted by Subject Matter and Forum) 

STATE 
TRIAL 
COURT 

APPELLATE 
COURT OF 
MARYLAND 

SUPREME 
COURT OF 
MARYLAND 

FEDERAL 
TRIAL 
COURT 

FEDERAL 
APPEALS 
COURT 

U.S. 
SUPREME 
COURT 

SUBJECT 
MATTER 
TOTALS 

ADMIN APPEAL: 
LAND USE 

2 2 4 

ADMIN APPEAL: 
OTHER 

2 2 

BANKRUPTCY 
CIVIL 
ENFORCEMENT 
CONTRACT 
DISPUTE 
DEBT 
COLLECTION 
EMPLOYMENT 
DISPUTE 
LAND USE 
DISPUTE 
MISCELLANEOUS 

PROPERTY 
DISPUTE 
TORT CLAIM 

WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION 
PER FORUM 
TOTALS 

17 23 

62 

Page 1 of 23 

® 



OVERVIEW OF PENDING LITIGATION 

MISC. ADMIN. APPEAL 
CONTRACT 4% LAND USE 

9% 17% 

USE DISPUTE 

4% 

WORKERS' C 

26% 

EMPLOYMENT 

13% 

DEBT COLL. 

9% 
TORT CLAIMS 

9% 

ADMIN. 

APPEAL OTHER 

9% 

Page 2 of 23 

63 © 



Admin 

Appeal: Land 

Use (AALU) 

Pending 
May 
2023 

June 2023 Litigation 

Activity Summary 

COUNT FOR MONTH 

New 

Cases 

Resolved 

Cases 

Pending 

Prior 

FIY 

New 

Cases 

FIYTD** 

COUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023 

Resolved 

Cases 

FIYTD** 

Pending 

Current 

Month 

Admin 

Appeal: Other 

(AAO) 

Bankruptcy 

(B) 
Civil 

Enforcement 

(CE) 

Contract 

Disputes (CD) 

Debt 

Collection (D) 

Employment 

Disputes (ED) 

Land Use 

Disputes (LD) 

Miscellaneous 

(M) 

Property 

Disputes (PD) 

Tort Claims 

(T) 
Workers’ 

Compensation 

(WC) 

TOTALS 26 21 22 28 23 

Page 3 of 23 

(=) rs 



INDEX OF YTD NEW CASES 
(7/1/2022 TO 6/30/23) 

A. New Trial Court Cases. Unit 

Commission v. Joseph Cleveland-Cooper MC 

(Defendant was not served until August 2022: did not appear on report prior) 

Antawan Williams, et al. v. Prince George’s PG 

County Planning Board 

(Did not appear on report prior) 

Wilmington Savings Fund Society v. PG 
Tomel Burke, Jr., et al. (Commission recently served.) 

English-Figaro v. Planning Board of Prince PG 

George’s County 

Fairwood Community Association, Inc. v. PG 

Prince George’s County Planning Board 

Stewart v. Dorsey, et al. MC 
Commission v. Lindsey PG 
In the Matter of James Montville PG 

In the Matter of Danielle Jones-Dawson PG 

Commission v. Watts PG 

Deakins v. Commission MC 

Izadjoo v. Commission MC 
Commission v. Cruz PG 

Citizen Association of Kenwood, Inc. MC 

v. Commission 

Simmons v. Commission, et al. PG 

In the Matter of William Dickerson PG 

In the Matter of Jeanne Kavinski PG 

(3 separate cases) 

In the Matter of Kenneth L. Rogers PG 

Commission v. Build A Barn MC 

In the Matter of Joshua P. Scully MC 

B. New Appellate Court Cases. Unit 

Friends of Ten Mile Creek, et al. v. MC 

Montgomery County Planning Board 

Wolf v. Commission, et al. PG 

Evans v. Commission, et al. MC 

In the Matter of HMF Paving Contractors MC 

Subject Matter 

Misc. 

AALU 

Misc. 

AALU 

AALU 

Tort 

Misc. 

WC 

AAO 

D 

ED 

ED 

Subject Matter 

AALU 

AALU 
ED 
Cc 

Month 

April 2020 

July 2022 

Aug. 2022 

Aug. 2022 

Aug. 2022 

Sept. 2022 

Sept. 2022 

Nov. 2022 

Nov. 2022 

Jan. 2023 

Jan. 2023 

Jan. 2023 

Jan. 2023 

Feb. 2023 

Feb. 2023 

Mar. 2023 

April 2023 

April 2023 

May 2023 

June 2023 

Month 

Aug. 2022 

Feb. 2023 

April 2023 

June 2023 

Page 4 of 23 

® 



INDEX OF YTD RESOLVED CASES 

(7/1/2022 TO 6/30/2023) 

A. Trial Court Cases Resolved. 

Friends of Ten Mile Creek, et al. v. 

Montgomery County Planning Board 

Village of Friendship Heights v. 

Montgomery County Planning Board 

Tolson v. Commission 

Alexander v. Proctor 

Melito v. Commission 
Snyder v. Commission 
Commission v. Joseph Cleveland-Cooper 
Stewart v. Dorsey 
McGill v. Commission 
Miles v. Commission 
Getnet v. Commission 
Wolf v. Prince George’s County 

Planning Board 

Jackson v. Prince George’s County 

Sports & Learning Complex 
Brown v. City of Bowie, et al. 
Fricklas v. The Planning Board of 

Prince George’s County 
King v. Commission 
Commission v. Conwell 
Williams, et al. v. Prince George’s County 
Chambers v. Commission 
Commission v. Cruz 
Commission v. Watts 
Robinson, et al v. Prince George’s County 

Planning Board, et al. 

Walters v. Commission 

HMF Paving Contractors v. Commission 

. Appellate Court Cases Resolved 

Heard v. Commission 

6525 Belcrest Road, LLC v. Dewey, et al. 
Heard v. Commission 

Izadjoo v. Commission 

Wolf v. Prince George’s County Planning 

Board 

Evans v. Commission, et al. 

Unit Subject Matter 

AALU 

AALU 

ED 

Tort 

ED 

Tort 

Misc. 

Tort 

WC 

ED 

Tort 

AALU 

Tort 

Subject Matter 

AALU 
AALU 
AALU 
ED 
AALU 

ED 

Month 

Aug. 2022 

Aug. 2022 

Aug. 2022 
Sept. 2022 

Sept. 2022 

Sept. 2022 
Sept. 2022 
Oct. 2022 
Oct. 2022 
Dec. 2022 

Jan. 2023 

Jan. 2023 

Feb. 2023 

Mar. 2023 

Mar. 2023 

Mar. 2023 

Mar. 2023 

Apr. 2023 

May 2023 

May 2023 

May 2023 

May 2023 

May 2023 

June 2023 

Month 

Aug. 2022 

Oct. 2022 

Nov. 2022 

Jan. 2023 

Feb. 2023 

Apr. 2023 

Page 5 of 23 

(ce) ar 



Disposition of FY23 Closed Cases 
sorted by Department 

CLIENT PRINCIPAL CAUSE OF ACTION IN DISPUTE DISPOSITION 
Employees Retirement System 

Finance Department 

Department of Human Resources & Management 

Montgomery County Department of Parks 

Snyder v. State of Maryland, et al. Tort suit for injuries allegedly sustained when tennis 

player allegedly tripped in hole of divider net and 

broke clavicle. 

08/15/2022 — Stipulation of 

Dismissal filed. 9/12/2022 

Case dismissed. Parties 

reached a settlement. 
Stewart v. Dorsey, et al. Injuries resulting from a motor vehicle incident. 

Vehicle operated by Commission employee. 
10/16/2022 — Case settled. 

12/09/2022 — Order of Court 

granting stipulation of 

dismissal. 
Izadjoo v. Commission In Appellate Court of Maryland, appeal from 

decision of the Circuit Court affirming the decision 

of the Merit System Board denying appeal of 

request for reclassification. 

1/20/2023 - Judgment of 

Circuit Court for Montgomery 
County Affirmed 

HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Commission Judicial review of CCRC decision denying HMF’s 
demand that an allowance be made, and additional 

monies be paid by the Commission to HMF for 

construction at Greenbriar Local Park. 

06/07/2023 — Decision of 

CCRC affirmed. 

Montgomery County Park Police 

Commission v. Joseph Cleveland-Cooper Forfeiture for cash of $3,043.00 9/29/2022 — Court ordered 

monies forfeited. 

Evans v. Commission, et al. Plaintiff, police lieutenant, filed a complaint against 

the Commission and four individual defendants, 

alleging discrimination, retaliation and assorted 

negligence and constitutional violations. 

03/31/2023 - Court granted 

summary judgment for all 

Defendants. 

Page 6 of 23 

(=r) ar 



Montgomery County Planning Board 

Friends of Ten Mile Creek, et al. v. Montgomery 

County Planning Board 
Appeal of decision affirming the Montgomery 

County Planning Board’s approval of Site Plan 

820200160 — Creekside at Cabin Branch. 

08/02/2022 - Planning Board’s 

Approval of Site Plan Affirmed. 

Petition for Judicial Review 

Denied. 
Village of Friendship Heights v. Montgomery County 

Planning Board 
Judicial Review of the Montgomery County 

Planning Board’s approval of Sketch Plan 

320220010-5500 Wisconsin Avenue. 

08/24/2022 - Order of Court. 
Affirmed ruling of Planning 

Board. 
Miles v. Commission Plaintiff, police officer, filed a complaint against the 

Commission and_ individual defendant, alleging 

hostile work environment, discrimination, retaliation, 

and violations of 42 USC §1981, 42 USC §1983, 
Maryland Statutory violations, and County Code 
violations. 

12/01/2022 — Marginal Order 

approving Stipulation of 
Dismissal, pursuant to global 

settlement. 

Prince George’s County Department of Parks and 
Recreation 

Melito v. Commission Plaintiff seeks to secure administrative meeting or 

hearing on termination, former employee claims 
were denied. 

09/15/2022 - Case dismissed 
pending implementation of 

contingencies allowing for 

appeal to Merit Board. 
McGill v. Commission Judicial review of Workers’ Compensation 

Commission decision dated July 19, 2021, which 
determined claimant had not sustained an increase 

in permanent partial disability and denied further 
treatment. 

10/26/2022 — Case settled and 
remanded to WCC for approval 

of settlement. 

Getnet v. Commission Tort suit for injuries allegedly sustained when visitor 

fell through decking at a historic property not owned 

by the Commission 

01/09/2023 — Case settled. 

Page 7 of 23 

® 



Jackson v. Prince George’s County Sports & Learning 

Complex 
Injury to minor allegedly related to use of equipment 

at the Sports & Learning Complex. 

08/16/2022 - Case settled. 
Line dismissing not filed until 

01/20/2023. Case dismissed 
02/10/2023. 

Brown v. City of Bowie, et al. Plaintiff alleges injuries resulted from an event at 

Prince George’s Trap and Skeet Center. 

Defendants included the individual who discharged 

a weapon, a Commission volunteer assigned to the 

group that day, and the Commission. 

03/02/2023 — Joint stipulation 

of Dismissal. 

King v. Commission Claimant seeks judicial review of an order from the 

Workers’ Compensation Commission denying 

authorization for neck surgery. 

03/02/2023 - Order Dismissing 
Claims and remanding to 

Workers’ Compensation 

Commission 

Commission v. Conwell Subrogation action to recover losses for damage(s) 

to Commission property. 

03/02/2023 - Judgment 

entered in favor of the 

Commission. 

Chambers v. Commission Injuries resulting from a motor vehicle incident. 

Vehicle operated by Commission employee. 

05/09/2023 — No Monetary 

Award to the Plaintiff 

Commission v. Cruz Subrogation action to recover losses for damage(s) 

to Commission property. 

05/12/2023 - Trial held. 
Judgment in favor of the 

Commission for $2,967.96. 

Commission v. Watts Subrogation action to recover losses for damage(s) 

to Commission property. 

05/16/2023 - Trial held. 
Judgment for Commission 
$15,375.00 

Walters v. Commission Tort suit for injuries allegedly sustained when minor 

was playing on playground equipment at Melwood 

Hills Community Park. 

05/04/2023 — Case settled. 

Prince George’s County Planning Board 

Heard v. Commission Appeal of decision affirming Prince George’s 

County Planning Board’s approval of Preliminary 

Plan of Subdivision 4-05068 and denial of March 

31, 2020, request for document under the 

Maryland Public Information Act. 

08/05/2022 — Judgment of the 
Circuit Court for Prince 
George’s County affirmed. 

Page 8 of 23 

(=) ar 



6525 Belcrest Road, LLC v. Dewey, L.C., et al. Declaratory Judgment Action filed over a dispute 

involving a parking parcel. Plaintiff contended that 

Defendants misconstrued prior approvals of the 

Planning Board regarding the need for parking in a 

manner that will harm their interests. Plaintiff 

sought to enjoin the Planning Board from 

approving a Detailed Site Plan. 

10/25/2022 — Order of 
Appellate Court of Maryland 

affirming decision of Circuit 

Court that upheld Planning 
Board. 

Heard v. Commission Petition for Writ of Certiorari of the Court of Special 
Appeals decision affirming the Circuit Court’s ruling 

that affirmed the Prince George’s County Planning 

Board’s approval of Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 

4-05068 and denial of March 31, 2020, request for 

document under the Maryland Public Information 

Act. 

11/22/2022 Petition for Writ 

denied. 

Wolf v. Prince George’s County Planning Board Judicial Review of the Prince George’s County 

Planning Board’s approval of Preliminary Plan of 

Subdivision 4-18001 (Magruder Pointe). 

01/03/2023 - Order Affirming 
the Decision of the Planning 

Board 

Page 9 of 23 

© 



Fricklas v. The Planning Board of Prince George’s 

County 
Challenge to the Planning Board’s approval of 

Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 

4-21052 (Suffrage Point). 

03/07/2023 — Motion to 

Dismiss Granted. 

Williams, et al. v. Prince George’s County Planning 

Board 

Petition for Judicial Review of Planning Board’s 

approval of Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 4- 

21056. 

04/17/2023 — Voluntary 

dismissal with prejudice. 

Robinson, et al. v. Prince George’s County Planning 

Board, et al. 

In relation to the development of a public K-8 

middle school, Petitioners are challenging the 

Planning Board’s decision to affirm the Planning 

Director's approval of a tree conservation plan, a 

revision of that tree conservation plan, and 

variances to the Woodland Conservation Ordinance 

that allowed removal of specimen trees. There is no 

statutory right to judicial review, and the petitioners 

cited no legal authority to petition the circuit court 

for judicial review. As a result, this may ultimately 

become a petition for a writ of mandamus under the 

administrative mandamus provisions of the 

Maryland Rules (7-401 to 7-403). 

05/11/2023 Order Dismissing 

Petition and Affirming the 

Decision of the Prince 

George's County Planning 

Board of the Maryland-National 

Capital Park and Planning 

Commission 

Prince George’s Park Police 

Tolson v. Commission Show Cause Action under the LEOBR regarding 
mandatory COVID vaccination requirements for 
police officers. 

08/08/2022 Show Cause 
Hearing held. Application for 

Show Cause Order denied. 
Alexander v. Proctor Officer Proctor deployed his Commission issued 

pepper spray when an unknown individual was 

observed wearing police-type gear and approaching 

our police substation. The individual failed/refused 

to stop, leading to the Officer deploying his pepper 

spray to stop and subsequently arrest the 

individual. Mr. Alexander (the individual) asserted 

that the stop was without Reasonable Articulable 

Suspicion/Probable Cause and therefore was 

unlawful and the amount of force used was 

excessive. 

9/29/2022 — Joint Stipulation of 
Dismissal filed. Parties settled 

matter at mediation. 

Office of Internal Audit 

Page 10 of 23 

(™) ar 



INDEX OF CASES 

DISTRICT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND .............ccccccccceceeeseeseeeeeeeeeeseeeeea eee eeeeeees 12 

Commission v. Build A Barn, LLC ooo... cece ccc eecce cee ce ee eeseueeeesueeeesuaeeseueeesaaesesaeesesaaeeeeeaeseteaeeeneaenegs 12 

DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ..............cccccccecseetestettesetseeeeeneeneee es 12 

COMMISSION V. FAUIK........ ccc cee cee ee eee eee eee eee ee eee eeee eee eee cece ee EEE Eee EEE EEEHESEEEAHEAHAAAHHaaA daa daa daa Gaaaaaeaaeea eee eee eee es 12 

COMMISSION V. LINKSEY ......... cece cece eeeeeeeeeeee eee eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeEEeE EEE EEE SESH EEHEEAHEGHAGaAGaaA saa daa daa gaa aaa eaa ead eea ee ees 13 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND ..............0.ccccccccesessseneeseeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeees 13 

Citizen Association of Kenwood, Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission .................... 13 

In the Matter of Joshua P. SCUIly ooo... cc ccccccceecee cesses eee eeeeeeeee eee ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeteeeeaeeesneaaeaaaaaaaas 14 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND ...............::c:cccsesseeseeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 14 

English-Figaro v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County ..........ccccccccccecceeeeeeeeeeseeseeaaeaaaeaeeaaaeaaeaaeeaeees 14 

Fairwood Community Association, Inc. v. Prince George’s County Planning Board..................cccccceeeeeeeees 15 

In the Matter of William DICKEPSON 00.0... cee nner eee eee nee eee ESE A AES D eee ete e seed aa eeee eee eeeeee nana 15 

In the Matter of Danielle Jone€S-DaWSON ...0...... cece cece eect eee e eee nner eee eee deen A Dene ee eee seed aa ceeeeeeeeeeee anaes 16 

In the Matter of JEANNE KAVINSKI 0.0... ccc ccc eee Eee e EEE EEE AEE Eee EEE ESAS HAAS on eee eee seee dad eeeeeeeeeeee nana 16 

In the Matter of James Montville .0..... ener renee Een e eee EE AEA ES one eee ee eae d aa oeee eee eeeeee anaes 17 

In the Matter of Kenneth L. ROGePS .......... ccc cccccccceeecceceeeeeceeceeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeseeeeeeseaeeeeeeseseeeeeesaaaeeeteeaseeeeees 17 

Simmons v. Commission, et al. ........000. occ cece cece ccc e ee ceee ee eeeeeeseeeaeeesaaeeesuayeseaeeesauevesuaesessaeeeeaeseveaesenaeeeegs 18 

Troublefield v. Prince George’s County, et Al. oo... ccccceceeceetestssseseeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeneeeneaanaaes 18 

Wilmington Savings Fund Society v. Tomel Burke, Jr., Ct al... cecccccceccceeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteseesnenaneaaas 19 

APPELLATE COURT OF MARYLAND. ..............cccccccccesceceesteeeeseeseeseeeecececeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeesaesaeaaaaaaaaaaaas 20 

Friends of Ten Mile Creek, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board..............cccccccccccsssseeeseteeeeeeneeeee es 20 

HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission ......................000000008 20 

Wolf, et al. v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County ..............ccccceccesecsceeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeneeteaneaaas 21 

SUPREME COURT OF MARYLAND .............cccccccceccecceeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteseesueaae aaa aaaaaaaaaeaaeeaseeeeeeeeeeeeees 21 

U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND. .............0.ccccccccecccceceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeaeesaesaaaaaaaaaaaeeaeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 22 

Deakins v. Commission, @t Al. ........ cece cece cee ccc cee cee eee cee eee ceeaeeseeaeeeseaeeesaaeeeeuaeeesaaveeuaevessaaeeeeaseeeaeeeneeeeegs 22 

IZAdjoo V. COMMISSION, Ct Al. oo... eke cece cece eee eeeeeeeeesee eee eeeeeeeeeeseeaeaseeeeeeeesaeeesseeeeeeeeeseeaaseeeeeeeeeseananees 22 

U.S. COURT OF Appeals for the fourth Circuit.................cccccccccccccecceceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeaueaaaaaaaaaaaaeaaeeaeees 23 

Evans v. Commission, et al.........000.0ccc cece cece ce ccc eeecee eee eee aee cee eeeseeaeeeeeaeseeaaeseseaeeesaevesuaesessaaesevaeeeeaeseseeeeegs 23 

Page 11 of 23 

12 ® 



DISTRICT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

Commission v. Build A Barn, LLC 

Case No. D-06-CV-23-013209 (C) 

Lead Counsel: Johnson 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: Breach of Contract matter to recover funds expended for sheds that were never 

received. 

Status: Hearing set 

Docket: 

05/11/2023 Complaint filed 

09/20/2023 Hearing set pending service. 

DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 

Commission v. Faulk 

Case No. 050200086392022 (D) 

Lead Counsel: Johnson 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: Subrogation action to recover losses for damage(s) to Commission property. 

Status: Hearing set 

Docket: 

04/25/2022 Complaint filed 

10/18/2022 Request for summons renewal filed. 

01/23/2023 Affidavit of Non-service filed. 

01/23/2023 Post Office request mailed 

02/14/2023 Motion for Alternative Service 

02/22/2023 Order — Motion for Alternative Service denied 

03/29/2023 Second Motion for Alternative Service 

04/12/2023 Order — Motion/Request Granted. 

04/21/2023 Service upon Maryland MVA pursuant to Court Order 

05/03/2023 Request for summons renewal filed. 

8/28/2023 Hearing set 

Page 12 of 23 

© 



Commission v. Lindsey 

Case No. 050200183742022 (D) 

Lead Counsel: Johnson 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: Action to recover losses for damage(s) to Commission property. 

Status: Request for summons renewal filed. 

Docket: 

09/12/2022 Complaint filed 

12/05/2022 Request for summons renewal filed. 

05/02/2023 Request for summons renewal filed. 

06/26/2023 Affidavit of Non-service filed. 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

Citizen Association of Kenwood, Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission 
Case No. C-15-CV-23-000378 (LUD) 

Lead Counsel: Rupert 
Other Counsel: Mills, Foster 

Abstract: Complaint to prevent implementation of road diet project for Little Falls Parkway 

in Montgomery County. 

Status: Motions’ hearing scheduled for August 22, 2023. 

Docket: 

02/06/2023 Complaint filed 

02/22/2023 Commission served 

03/24/2023 Commission’s Motion to Dismiss and Supporting Memorandum 

04/10/2023 Opposition to Motion to Dismiss and Request for Hearing 

04/24/2023 Commission’s Reply to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 

04/27/2023 Plaintiff's Motion to Compel Discovery 

Commission’s Motion for Protective Order 

05/15/2023 Commission’s Opposition to Motion to Compel 

05/26/2023 Opposition to Motion for Protective Order 

06/05/2023 Reply to Opposition to Motion for Protective Order 

08/22/2023 Motions hearing set. 

Page 13 of 23 

© 



In the Matter of Joshua P. Scully 

Case No. C-15-CV-23-002546 (WC) 

Lead Counsel: Foster 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: Claimant seeks judicial review of Workers’ Compensation Order finding that 

claimant at maximum medical improvement and denying right shoulder surgery. 

Status: Hearing set. 

Docket: 

06/27/2023 Petition for Judicial Review filed 

12/01/2023 Hearing set 

CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND 

English-Figaro v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County 
Case No. CAL 22-25639 (AALU) 

Lead Counsel: Warner 
Other Counsel: Coleman 

Abstract: Petition for Judicial Review of Planning Board’s approval of Preliminary Plan of 

Subdivision 4-2104. 

Status: Case consolidated with Fairwood Community Association, Inc. v. Prince George’s 

County Planning Board. Hearing set. 

Docket: 

08/26/2022 Petition filed 

08/31/2022 Amended Petition filed 

09/19/2022 Notice mailed. Response to Petition and Certificate of 

Compliance filed. 

09/29/2022 Motion to Consolidate with Fairwood Community Association, 

Inc. v. Prince George’s County Planning Board — CAL 22- 

26146 

10/03/2022 Voluntary Partial Dismissal 

11/10/2022 Record and Transcript filed 

11/15/2022 Notice of Record Issued. 

12/07/2022 Order Consolidating case with CAL22-26146 — Fairwood 

Community Association, Inc. v. Prince George’s County 

Planning Board. 

Page 14 of 23 

® 



Fairwood Community Association, Inc. v. Prince George’s County Planning Board 

Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Case No. CAL 22-26146 (AALU) 

Warner 

Coleman 

Petition for Judicial Review of Planning Board’s approval of Preliminary Plan of 

Subdivision 4-2104. 

Hearing set. 

08/29/2022 Petition filed 

09/21/2022 Notice mailed. Response to Petition and Certificate of 

Compliance filed. 

10/18/2022 Response to Petition for Judicial Review. 

11/10/2022 Record and Transcript filed. 

11/15/2022 Notice of Record Issued. 

12/07/2022 Order Consolidating case with CAL22-25639 — English-Figaro 

v. Prince George’s County Planning Board. 

8/17/2023 Hearing scheduled. 

In the Matter of William Dickerson 

Case No. C-16-CV-23-001402 (AAO) 

Gates (Groom Law Group) 

Claimant seeks judicial review of Employees Retirement System (“ERS”) 

decision dated February 21, 2023, which denied a reconsideration of the COLA 

calculation. 

Petition for Judicial Review filed. Commission’s memorandum due July 31. 

03/28/2023 Petition for Judicial Review filed 

04/05/2023 ERS served 

04/25/2023 Administrative Record received 

05/26/2023 Stipulation for Extension of Time for Petition to File Opening 

Memorandum 

06/20/2023 Petitioner's Memorandum of Law in Support of Petition for 

Judicial Review 

Page 15 of 23 

© 



In the Matter of Danielle Jones-Dawson 

Case No. C-16-CV-22-000675 (AAO) 

Lead Counsel: Crowe 

Other Counsel: Foster 

Abstract: Claimant seeks judicial review of Merit Board decision dated October 20, 2022, 

terminating employment due to non-compliance with Notice 21-07, COVID-19 

Vaccination Requirements. 

Status: Hearing set. 

Docket: 

11/20/2022 Petition for Judicial Review filed 

11/29/2022 Response to Petition for Judicial Review 

02/08/2023 Memorandum for Petitioner 

03/09/2023 Commission’s Answering Memorandum 

12/04/2023 Hearing set. 

In the Matter of Jeanne Kavinski 

Case No. C-16-CV-23-001821, C-16-CV--23-001826, C-16-23-CV-001827 (WC) 

Lead Counsel: Foster 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: Claimant filed the same issues in three claims with overlapping body parts 

seeking authorization for treatment and causal relationship of a new injury. In 

addition, the Commission contested whether a compensable injury occurred in a 

new claim (D/A:4/28/2021). The Commission was successful in defending the 

authorization for treatment and against the new claim. Claimant has appealed the 

determination in all three claims. 

Status: Response filed. Discovery Pending in C-16-23-CV-001827. Other cases 

consolidated. 

Docket: 

04/18/2023 Petition for Judicial Review filed 

05/02/2023 Response to Petition for Judicial Review filed in all three 

cases. 
05/02/2023 Commission’s Designation of Experts filed in case number 

C-16-23-CV-001827 
06/27/2023 Order of the Court. Cases C-16-CV23-001821 and C-16-CV- 

23-001826 are consolidated. Case - C-16-CV23-001821 to 
serve as the lead case. 

Page 16 of 23 

© 



Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

In the Matter of James Montville 

Case No. C-16-CV-22-000489 (WC) 

Foster 

Claimant seeks judicial review of Workers’ Compensation Commission decision 
dated October 3, 2022, which determined that he has a 12% permanent partial 

disability. Claimant was seeking an award that was much higher. 

Case settled in principle. 

11/03/2022 Petition for Judicial Review filed 

11/17/2022 Response to Petition for Judicial Review 

12/05/2022 Response to Petition for Judicial Review 

12/05/2022 Designation of Expert Witnesses 

12/05/2022 Cross-Petition for Judicial Review 

12/18/2023 Trial set 

In the Matter of Kenneth L. Rogers 

Case No. C-16-CV-23-001935 (WC) 

Foster 

Claimant seeks judicial review of Workers’ Compensation Commission decision 
dated March 30, 2023, which determined that the Claimant did not suffer from a 
serious disability. 

Response to Petition filed. 

04/26/2023 Petition filed 

05/10/2023 Response to Petition for Judicial Review Filed 

05/10/2023 Designation of Expert Witnesses 

Page 17 of 23 

18 ® 



Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Simmons v. Commission, et al. 

Case No. C-16-CV-23-000873 (Tort) 

Rupert 

Crowe 

Tort suit for injuries allegedly sustained while attending Therapeutic Recreations 

Programs, Kids’ Care After-School Program at Cedar Heights Community 

Center. 

In discovery. 

02/24/2023 Complaint filed 

02/28/2023 Commission served 

03/28/2023 Motion to Dismiss filed. 

03/30/2023 Prince George’s County’s Motion to Dismiss 

04/14/2023 Stipulation of Dismissal as to Defendants Prince George’s 

County and Maryland-National Park and Planning 

Commission 

04/20/2023 Answer of Defendant Chatman 

05/09/2023 Scheduling Order issued 

05/07/2024 Trial 

Troublefield v. Prince George’s County, et al. 
Case No. CAL 22-12298 (Tort) 

Rupert 

Tort suit for injuries allegedly sustained while attending a graduation ceremony at 

Show Pace Arena. 

In discovery. 

04/11/2022 Complaint filed 

04/27/2022 Commission served 

05/09/2022 Stipulation/Line of Dismissal as to Prince George’s County 

only 

05/20/2022 Commission’s Answer filed 

11/14/2023 ADR 

01/24/2024 Trial 

Page 18 of 23 

® 



Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Wilmington Savings Fund Society v. Tomel Burke, Jr., et al. 
Case No. CAE20-11813 (Misc.) 

Rupert 

Lawsuit to quiet title to deed of trust and extinguish the lien and debt associated 

with that deed, establishing that Plaintiff's deed is in full force and effect and has 

first priority over the Commission’s lien on property owned by Tomel Burke, 

judgment Debtor. 

Commission agreed to consent judgment. 

04/24/2020 Complaint filed 

04/05/2022 Motion for Default as to Commission filed 

04/19/2022 Commission’s Opposition to Plaintiffs Motion for Default 

05/09/2022 Order of Court. Motion for Default as to Commission denied. 

11/18/2022 Complaint received 

12/07/2022 Amended Motion for Entry of Default 

12/30/2022 Commission’s Consent to Judgment without Answer 

05/23/2023 Ex Parte Hearing cancelled by court. 

06/02/2023 Order of the Court Plaintiff's Motion for Deferral of Order of 

Dismissal granted. Order of Dismissal is deferred as to 

Defendant Villages of Marlborough Community Association, 

Inc. 

08/30/2023 Hearing set 

Page 19 of 23 

® 



APPELLATE COURT OF MARYLAND 

Friends of Ten Mile Creek, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board 

Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Case No. CSA-REG-1094-2022 (AALU) 
(Originally filed under 487649-V in Montgomery County) 

Mills 

Appeal of decision affirming the Montgomery County Planning Board’s approval 

of Site Plan 820200160 — Creekside at Cabin Branch. 

Appeal filed. 

08/30/2022 Appeal filed 

08/31/2022 Notice of Appeal issued by COSA 
10/06/2022 Order to Proceed 

12/05/2022 Briefing Notice 

01/17/2023 Appellant Brief and Record Extract filed. 

0215/2023 Appellee Brief filed 

02/16/2023 Notice to Amend/Substitute Party to name proper entity filed by 

Pulte Home Company, LLC 

02/16/2023 Correspondence from Court regarding dates 
02/21/2023 Response by Counsel to Conflict Notification letter 

02/28/2023 Order substituting proper party, Pulte Home Company LLC 

03/07/2023 __| Reply Brief 
03/17/2023 Scheduling Notice 

HME Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission 

Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Case No. ACM- REG-0840-2023 (CD) 
(Originally filed under 483255-V in Montgomery County) 

Rupert 

Mills (CCRC) 

Appeal of decision affirming CCRC decision denying HMF’s demand that an 

allowance be made, and additional monies be paid by the Commission to HMF 

for construction at Greenbriar Local Park. 

Appeal filed. 

| 06/26/2023 __| Notice of Appeal 

Page 20 of 23 

© 



Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Wolf, et.al. v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County 

Case No. ACM-REG-2099-2022(AALU) 

(Originally filed under CAL20-14895 in Prince George’s County) 

Warner 

Appeal of decision affirming the Prince George’s County Planning Board’s 
approval of Preliminary Plan of Subdivision 4-18001 (Magruder Pointe). 

Appealed 

02/02/2023 Notice of Appeal 

02/23/2023 Show Cause Issued to Appellant. Civil Appeal Information 

Report due March 10, 2023. 

02/28/2023 Motion 
03/03/2023 Order 
03/08/2023 Motion 
03/20/2023 Order to Proceed 

05/19/2023 Briefing Notice 

SUPREME COURT OF MARYLAND 

No Pending Matters 

Page 21 of 23 

®)
 



Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND 

Deakins v. Commission, et al. 

8:23-cv-00138 AAQ (ED) 

Foster 

Rupert 

Complaint by former employee relating to Commission’s COVID-19 vaccination 

mandate. Complaint alleges disability discrimination and unreasonable failure to 

accommodate 

Commission served. 

01/19/2023 Complaint filed 

01/24/2023 Case Management Order 

01/24/2023 Commission served 

01/30/2023 Notice of Intent to file Motion to Dismiss by Defendants Riley 

and Spencer 

02/01/2023 Order — all parties have voluntarily consent to proceed before 

Magistrate 

02/27/2023 Answer to Complaint 

03/06/2023 Order regarding Motion to Dismiss 

03/20/2023 Joint Status Report 

03/20/2023 Order approving briefing schedule 

04/19/2023 Commission’s Partial Motion to Dismiss filed 

05/05/2023 Response in Opposition to Motion to Dismiss for Failure to 

State a Claim filed 

5/19/2023 Reply to Response to Motion to Dismiss for Failure to State a 

Claim filed 

Izadjoo v. Commission, et al. 

8:23-cv-00142 TDC (ED) 

Foster 

Johnson 

Former Montgomery Parks employee alleging employment discrimination 

Complaint filed. Commission served. 

01/19/2023 Complaint filed 

01/25/2023 Case Management Order 

02/07/2023 Commission served 

02/13/2023 Request for Pre-Motion Conference re: Intent to File Motion to 

Dismiss 

Page 22 of 23 

(=) ar 



Lead Counsel: 

Other Counsel: 

Abstract: 

Status: 

Docket: 

U.S. COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT 

Evans v. Commission, et al. 

Case No. 23-1475 

(Appeal from 8:19-cv-02651) (ED) 

Foster 

Levan 

Plaintiff, police lieutenant, filed a complaint against the Commission and four 

individual defendants, alleging discrimination, retaliation and assorted negligence 

and constitutional violations. 

Appeal filed. 

04/25/2023 Appeal filed 

05/25/2023 Briefing Order filed 

Page 23 of 23 

® 


	1. AGENDA Commission Meeting Jul 19 2023
	blank spacer page
	2. 6-21-23 Comm Mtg FINAL
	blank spacer page
	4. June 6, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes - FINAL 7-11-23
	5b. Full Commission Memo on Secure Act 2.0 Options
	5d. Mapping-Segregation-Staff-Report_12-1-22
	overview
	Conclusion
	Attachment

	5d2. Mapping-Segregation-Staff-Report-Attachment-A
	Introduction
	Redlining, the Home Owners’ Loan Corporation, the Federal Housing Administration, and Private Lending
	Home Owners’ Loan Corporation
	Home Owners’ Loan Corporation and Montgomery County
	Mortgage Providers
	Federal Housing Administration
	The FHA, Private Lending Practices, and Montgomery County

	Racial Restrictive Covenants
	Project Methodology
	Early Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1904-1919
	Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1920-1933
	Racial Restrictive Covenants in Montgomery County: 1934-1948
	Racial Restrictive Covenants and De Facto Segregation in Montgomery County: 1949-1968
	Fair Housing Ordinance and Law: 1967-1968

	Case Study: Takoma Park
	Conclusion
	Appendix: Project Deliverables

	6a1. LATE PERF EVAL JUNE.2023
	Sheet1

	6a2. Performance Reviews Report -  June 30, 2023 - Commission Mtg
	Summary

	6b. June Cover memo
	MEMORANDUM
	Table of Contents – June 2023 FY 2023 Report


	6b1. June 2023
	SUBJECT MATTER TOTALS
	U.S. SUPREME
	FEDERAL
	FEDERAL
	SUPREME COURT OF MARYLAND
	APPELLATE COURT OF MARYLAND
	STATE TRIAL COURT
	APPEALS
	TRIAL
	COURT
	COURT
	COURT
	ADMIN APPEAL: LAND USE
	2
	2
	ADMIN APPEAL: OTHER
	2
	BANKRUPTCY
	CIVIL ENFORCEMENT
	CONTRACT DISPUTE
	1
	1
	DEBT COLLECTION
	2
	2
	EMPLOYMENT DISPUTE
	3
	1
	2
	LAND USE DISPUTE
	1
	1
	MISCELLANEOUS
	1
	1
	PROPERTY DISPUTE
	TORT CLAIM
	2
	2
	WORKERS’ COMPENSATION
	6
	6
	PER FORUM TOTALS
	1
	Village of Friendship Heights v. Montgomery County Planning Board
	Miles v. Commission 
	Jackson v. Prince George’s County Sports & Learning Complex
	King v. Commission
	Commission v. Conwell
	Chambers v. Commission
	Commission v. Cruz
	Commission v. Watts
	Walters v. Commission
	Fricklas v. The Planning Board of Prince George’s County
	Williams, et al. v. Prince George’s County Planning Board
	Robinson, et al. v. Prince George’s County Planning Board, et al. 

	2
	3
	17
	Index of CASES
	DISTRICT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
	Commission v. Build A Barn, LLC

	DISTRICT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND
	Commission v. Faulk
	Commission v. Lindsey

	CIRCUIT COURT FOR MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND
	Citizen Association of Kenwood, Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission
	In the Matter of Joshua P. Scully

	CIRCUIT COURT FOR PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY, MARYLAND
	English-Figaro v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County
	Fairwood Community Association, Inc. v. Prince George’s County Planning Board
	In the Matter of William Dickerson
	In the Matter of Danielle Jones-Dawson
	In the Matter of Jeanne Kavinski
	In the Matter of James Montville
	In the Matter of Kenneth L. Rogers
	Simmons v. Commission, et al.
	Troublefield v. Prince George’s County, et al.
	Wilmington Savings Fund Society v. Tomel Burke, Jr., et al.

	APPELLATE COURT OF MARYLAND
	Friends of Ten Mile Creek, et al. v. Montgomery County Planning Board
	HMF Paving Contractors Inc. v. Maryland-National Park and Planning Commission
	Wolf, et al. v. Planning Board of Prince George’s County
	SUPREME COURT OF MARYLAND

	U.S. DISTRICT COURT OF MARYLAND
	Deakins v. Commission, et al.
	Izadjoo v. Commission, et al.

	U.S. COURT OF Appeals for the fourth Circuit
	Evans v. Commission, et al.


	6a2. Performance Reviews Report -  June 30, 2023 - Commission Mtg.pdf
	Summary

	7a2. Performance Reviews Report -  June 30, 2023 - Commission Mtg.pdf
	Summary




